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Notice Of The Ninth
Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Ninth Annual General Maeting (AGM) of the Company will e held
at Mesting Room 1 of Holiday inn Melaka, Jalan Syed Abdul Azlz, 75000 Melaka on Wednesday, 29 June
2011 at 1030 am

AGENDA

i I'o recaive the Audilsd Fil_'lanuiar Statements for the financlal year ended 31 {Resolulion 1)
Decamber 2010 1ogather with the Reponts of the Directars and the Auditors thermeon.

2. Toapprove ihe payment of Direcioes’ Fees for the financlal year ended 31 December (Resolulcn 2]
2010,

. I'o re-slect the following Qirectars who retire pursuant o Article 92 of the Company's
Mrticles ¢f Assaciation,

(@) Mr. SeeWan Seng {Resolulion 3)
(B) Puan Adillal Bint Ahmad Nordin { Resolulion 4)
(€] Mr. Siow Kee Yen (Rasolulion 5)

4. Tore-appoint Emst & Young as Auditors of the Company until the canclusicn of the {Fesolulion &)
next AGM and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneralion.

8. As Special Business

To oonsider and il thought fil, walh or withoul modificstion, to pass the following
resalution as Qrdinary Resolution:-

Ordinary Resolulion
-  Proposed Renewal OF Shareholders' Mandate For Recurrent Related Party [Resolulon 7)
Transactions Of A Revenue Or Trading Nature

THAT subject 1o tho Companies Act, 1965, the Memorandum and Adictes of
Assoclation of the Company and Main Market Listing Requirsments of Bursa
Mataysia Securities Berhad, aporoval be and is hereby given 1o Omapaper Barhad
ard & subsldlary Compganies [Lhe Group) 19 enter nto amy ol the category of
recurrenl related pany transactions of @ revenus or trading nature as set oul n
Saction 2.3 of the Company's Circular o Shareholders dated 7 June 2011 wath the
retated pary mentioned thersin which are necessary for s cay-to-day operations
subject further to the following:-

() the transactions are in the ordinary covrse of business and are on nomal
commercial terme which are not mors favouranle o the related party
imaivad than generally avaliable o the public ard on Emms not o the
datrimant of the minority shareholdars,

)] the Sharshoiders' Mandale s subject 1o annual ranswal and dizclosuns (&

made In the annual report of the aggregsts valus of ransactions conducted
pursuan o the Sharehoiders” Mandate during the financal vear, and
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{c) in @ mesting fo obiain sharehnlders’ mandale, the inferested directors,
interested major sharaholders o Interasled persons connecied with a
direclor ar major shareholder; and wherz L invoives the inferesl of an
Interested persen connected with 2 director or major shareholdar, such
direclor ar major sharenalder must not vote on the esolutdon aporoving the
transactions. An inerested directar or imteresied major shareholder must
gnsure Ihat persons connecled wih him abstain frem woting an the
resciution approving the transactons.

THAT such approval shall continue to be in farce until-

(] the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company following the general
maeling at which such Propesed Renewsal of Shareholders’ Mandalz was
passed, at which time it will lapse, unless by resolution passed at the general
maeling, lhe aulhority & renewed;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the ACM of the Company aftar the
dale s required 1o be held pursuani Lo the provisions ol The Campanles Act
1965; ar

(i revekad or varied by msolution passed by he shamsholders Inoan AGM or
Exlrecrcinary General Me=ing,

whicheveris earlier
AND THAT the Direclors andfor any of them Be and are hersby auheorssd lo
complate and do al such acts and things [Including axeculing such coouments as

may be reguired) ta give effect ta the Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate.

To tansact any ather ordinany business of which dus nolice has been given.

By Order of the Board

Chua Siew Chuan (MAICSA 0777688)
Sean Ne Teo (L3 0D0E05E)
Company Sacretarias

Meials
7 duns 2011

Explanatory Note Te Special Buslness:-

1.

Proposed Renewal of Shareholders' Mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transaction of a
Revenue or Trading Maturs

The Resalution f, IF passsd would-enabla the Company and |te subeidisry companies to anter inte any of
the existing recurrent related party Iransactions of a revenue or trading nature which are necessary for the
Sroup's day-to-day operallons, subjsct ta the ransactons baing in the ordinary course of husinass and
on narmal commernsial terme which are not mere favourable to the related parties than those gensrally
available to the public and are nul to lhe detdment of the minority sharstiolders of the Company.
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{1y In respect of deposited secunly, anly members whose names appaar in the Record of Depositors on 29
Juna 2011 {"General Mesling Record of Depositors™) shall be sligioie toattend the Mesling.

fn & membarantited to attend and vate al this Maeling is entitied 1o appoint monz than twe (2) proviss (o
attend srd vota In his slesd A proxy may bul nead not ba a member of the Company and a membar may
appoint any parson 1o ba his proxy withowt Imitation and ine provision of Section 148(1)(a), (b}, (c) and
(d) of the Companiss Act, 1265 shall nol apply ko the Company,

(i} Whera a membar appoints two (2} or more proxias, the appointmant shall be invalid unless he or =he
specifies the proporion of his ar her holdings o be representad by each proxy.

) The instroment appointing & peosty shiall be in writing under the hand of the appointor ar af his attorney
duly authorised I writing ar if the appointor {2 8 corporation, slther under its 28al or under the hand of an
officer or attorney duly authorised.

{v) The insbumen! appointing a proxy must be depasiled at the Registered Office of the Comparny al Lot 14,

ah Flaar, Menara Fertam, Jalan BBF 2, Taman Batu Berandam Putra, Baiu Barendam, 75350 Melaka not
less than 48 hours before the Ume for holding the Meeting or 2l any adioumment thereol.
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Corporate Information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS . Mr. Sal Chin Hock
Mr, Ang Kwee Teng
Mr. Se= Wan Sang
(Exacutive Direclar)

Tuan Haji Aznar bin MNayan
{Mon-indepandent Mon-Execulive Diréctar)

Mr Siow Kee Yern
Puar Adillah binti Ahrmad Nosdin
(Independent Non-Executive Directon

ALDIT COMMITTEE Mr. Siow Kee Yen (Chainman)

Puan Adillah binti Ahmad Mordin

Tuan Hap Azhar bin Mayan

NOMINATION COMMITTEE Mr. Ziow Kees Yen (Chalrman}
Puan Adillah bint Ahrrad Nosdin
Tuan Hajt Azhar bin Navan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE Puar Adillah bintd Atrmad Merdin (Chairperson)
Mr. Siow Kee Yen

Tuan Haji Aznar bin Nayar

COMPANY SECRETARIES Ms. Chua Siew Chuan (MAICSA G7TTERS)
M= Sean Ne Teo (LS 00Q3058)

REGISTERED OFFICE Lot 1A, L=
Menzra Pertam, Jalan BBP 2,
faman Balu Berendam Futra
Bati Berendam, TE3R0 Melaka.
Tel; 0E-2355210 Fax; 08-3355570)

SHARE REGISTRAR Tricor Investor Services Sdn Bhd
Levol 17, The Gardans Marih Towsar
Mid Valley City
Lingkaran Syed Pulra
£8200 Kuala Lumpur
Tel: 603-22643883 Fax: 603-22821836
isanauingiERmy. inoorglobal.com

ALDITORS Emst & Young (AF 0033)
Charared Acocountants
Lat 1. Bth Fioor
Menara Pertam, Jalan BBR 2,
Taman Ediu Berendam Puira
Batu Barendam, 75350 Melaka.

ETOCHK EXCHANGE LISTING Main Markel of Burss Malaysia
Securitias Barhad
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Mr Sai Chin Hock

Age

Malionality

Designation § Position in the Company
Data of appointinant

Clualification

Work experience
Diracterehip in othar Publiic Companies
Securifies holding in tha Company ang s subsidlares

Profile of Directors

=1

: Malaysian

» Executive Dirscior

= 28 Janisary 2010

: Baghelor of Commerce {Manyang  University,

Fingapore)

: Managing Directar far The past 35 years
=N

Cirect - B4G 400 sharas

: Deemed - 22,305,798 shares

Famlly refationship with any directers and !/ or major

sharehokders of the Company M

Canfiict of [nterest with the Company LN

Lizt of conviction for offences within the pasl 10 vears . Mil

Tuan Haji Azhar bin Nayan

Age 148

Matiorality : Malavsian

Designation ! Position in the Company : Non-Executive Dirsctor

Dale of appointment ; 2 December 2002

Qualification » Degree in Bachelor of Sclence Accountancy; MBA In
Finance; Member of Amancan instilule of Certified
Public Accountants

Waork experience ; Maragement Consultant in Ernst & Whinny: Audltor

Directorship in other Pubilic Companies
Securtes holding in the Company and it subsidiaries -

wilh Arthur Andersen & Co.; Gengral Manager in
Lesnbaga Tabung Hafl (1986 to present); Diresclor of
Omapaper Induatry (M) Sdn Bhd (Dresant)

: Tafi Industries Barthad

Direat - 25,000 shares

: Dezmed - Nil

Famliy ralationship with any directors and | or major
snaraheklers of the Company

Confiict of interest with the Company

List of conviction for ofences within the past 10 years

0 Annuz! Report 2010
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Profile of Directors

Mr See Wan Seng

Age

Matonality

Dasignation / Pasilicn in the Company
Date of appainkment

Gualification

Wik exparisnce

Oireclorship on other Public Companias

Family relationship with any director and | or major
sharaholders of the Company

Canflicl of intarest with e Company

List of Conviction for affences within the past 10 years

Mr Siow Kea Yen

Age

Maticnaliby

Designation / Pasition Inthe Campany
Date of appointment

Qualification

Werk experence

Direclarship in cthear Public Companies

Secunines holding in the Company and its subsidiaries
- Deamead - NI

Family retationship with any dirsdons and / or malor
sharshulders of the Company

Canflicl of imlemst wilh the Company

List of corwiction for nffencas within tha past 10 years

ORNAPAPER BERHAD mmwarm '
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: B4
: Malaysian

Executive Director

: 2 Decembar 2002
: Baghelor of Commerce Degres from Nanyang

University Singapore

Director & General Manager of Cardon Box Industrial
(M) Sdn Bhd {1980 to 1585); Directar of Ornapaper
Industry (M) Sdn Bhd (1995 to 2008, rejoined from
2010 to present); Dlreclor af Tripack Packaging (M)
Sdn Bhd (2004 to 2008, rejoined from 20710 to
present).

CI
Secuntes holding in the Company and its subsidianes
: Deomed - 18,634,888 shares

Ciract - NIl

|
: Wil

il

o 4]

alaysian

s Indapardant Mon-Exacutive Director
. 7 Deominhar 2002
: Membisr

of Malaysian Inslilute of Accountants
Henours Degres in Bachelor of Adcountancy

s Audit Sentor (n Atthur Andersen & Ca, (1998-1899),

Audit Manager with Chin & Co. (2000-2001), Patner
of Y Siow & Co, (20017 ko present)

- NIl

Direct - 220,500 shares

Ml
- Ml
- Wil
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Profile of Directors

Puan Adillah binti Ahmad Nardin

Age g
Malionslity : Malayslan
Deslgnation [ Pesiion in the Company : Independant Non-Executive Director
Oate of apzointmeant : 2 Decembar 2002
Cuzlification : LL.B (Honours)
\Work exparience : Engiish Bar & Mataysian Bar (1993 £1954); Advocane &
2ohcitor with Adillah A, Nordin [present)
Oirectorship (n ather Fublc Comoanies Ml
Securilies holding in the Company and its ! Djrect — 34,000 shares
subsidianes ! Ceamed — M
Family relstionship with any directors and / or major
sharahaldars of the Company TN
Conflict of intarast with the Company il

List of convichon for offences withen the pasl 10 years - Ni|

Mr Ang Kwee Teng

Age il

Mationality : Malaysian

Clesignation / Position in the Company : Exscutive Cirector

Cale of apoointmeant : 2 December 2002

Cluslilication i-

Wik axparien s : Diresctow of Crrapaper industry (M) Sdn Bhd (1895 10
[IrEsET

Oirectarship in othar Public Companies : Galsta Synargy Barnad

Sacorities holding in the Company and its subsidianes @ Direct - 10,000
: Deemad - 18,634 ABE shares
Famlly relationamp with any directors and / of major
sharehalders af the Company + Nl
Conflict of interest with the Company |
Li=l of comviction for offences within the past 10 years @ Wil
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On behalf of the Board of Diractars, Bz wilh plaasure thal | prasant (o vou the Annual Regarl and Sudibed
Finanomal Staterments of Croapaper Barhad for he year ended 31 Decamber 2070,

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded & higher revenue ol RM217 milion in the reportng year as compared o a RM158
miliior In the previous year. The increase. in revenue by 38% from the proceding year was mainly resulod
from lhe rsing pnoes and demand of cormugated boamds and carton boxes due to favorable econamic
arnvironmenl.

Desplte the Increase in wmover, e Group had posied nei profiiz after ieedon of BM4.59 milllon for
fmancial year ended 31 Decamber 2010 as compsared to RMA.ET million i the cormesponding year. This was
mainky die & fsing cos=l of peper roll and oparating cost which eroded {he profil margin of the Group.

PROSPECTS FOR 2011

The year 2011 conlinued o be challenging due to rising price of paper roll In tandem with the surging of
orude ol price and oparaling cest which will in turn erode tne profit margin of the Group. The Group shall
ponlinue to fogus on production efficiency and increase market share. We apined thal these stratagias will
turther enhance our eamings.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Eoard place high commitment in tha haslthcara, devalapment and fraining for our employaes 88 o
ensurg they are wall eguipped with thalr jobs. In addition, wa also plase greal imporances on thes welians of
aur amployeas.

AFPPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | wish o express my sincere gratitude and appreciation 1o the Board and employess
af the Sroup for their contribution and dedicalion to the Group through the years. The 2uncess of lhe Group
5, withoul & doubt, the result of the dadication and hard wark of sach and avery smployes.

| also wish to thank our loyal customars for choosing our products and senvices: our suppliers and nankers
for thair trust and suppaort and last but not least, sur shareholgers for investing In our Company.

2n behall of the Board,
Sai Chin Hock
Exsculive Director

Annual Report 2010 09



Tre Board of Directors ("the Board') is committed o maintaining bigh slandads of corporate govermnance
within the group and sre belng pracliced throughout the Group towards enhancing business prosparity,
maximzing shamshaldars value and supporting excallen] corporate canduct basad on e recommendation of
the Malaysan Code an Corporate Govarnanda (“ine Code')

The Board lurlher acknowledged What good corporate governance s a lundamantal par of s reaponsiblity in
managing the business and operations of the Group. The following stalament sets cul how the Group has
applied the Princlples conalnad in Part 1 of (he Coda. Tha extend of the Group's complignes with 1o Baost
Practices set out in Part 2 of the Codd 15 a8 stalad In Sompliancs Statement

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Balance and Composition

Tre Hoard members comprise of three Executive Directors, ome Mon-Expcutive Dirsctor and two
indapandant Non-Exacutiva Directors. Tha Composition of the Board nol only mafllect the wide range of
experiances, skills and knowledge required in the peper packaging industry, bul also professionals wilh
divarss knowladge and skills a0 the amas of secaunting, legal apd genersl managament, There 15 also =
balanced nux of expenence and experhise o eflfectively discharge ils stewardship respensibiiilies in
apearheading the Group's growih and future direction

Prefile of individual Directors are sat out in pages 6 to B of this annual report

The Board balance |5 reflected through the cenfributions of Independent Nos-Executive Dirsctors. The
Independant Non-Execulve Directors provide objestive and independem |udgemeant to faclitate balance
leadership of the Group as Wwell as to safequard interesi of the minority shareholders and other slakehoiders
By ensunng the hghest standard of conduct and intsarity are maintained by the Group. The Non-Executive
Cirector coniribule signficandly in argas such zs policy and strategy, performance monitoring as well a8
Impravirg governance and confrols.

Board Responaibilities

The Bowrd is esponsiole for the ovarsll corporate governance of the Group, including its strategic direction,
establishing geals for managemant and menitening the achievemen! of thesse gosals,

Tre Managemen! Committes ["MC"} assisls the Board In Ihe day-to-day operations of the Group The MG
comprises the Executive Director and heads of departimeants wilhin tha Group.

Tre Board has also delegated cartain responsinililies to ottier Board Committees, which aparste within cleany
detined terms of reference.

Board Meelings
The Board mecsls al least four (4) times a year, with additanal meetings convened as required. Motice of

Board mestings with agendas and Board paper for sach agenda la be discussed woukl be distributad toall
Cirectors for fmely and accurate infermation prioe to the meeting.

16 Annual Repor 2010
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Statement On Corporate Governan

The Board med six {§) tmes duting the rancial year ended 31 December 2010 and delalls of the attendance of
Directars during the finanee| year under review are 83 follows-

Mamas of Directors Attendance

Lirmy Tawi Lin 414 [Retired at AGM held an 29 June 2090)

Ang Kwea Teng 55

Beea Wan Bang 6%

Azhar bin Nayan sl

Siow Kaa Yan B

Adillah bintl Abmad MNordin B

Sal Chin Hock B8 (Appalimead w the Board an 26 January 2010)

At each meeting, the Board canslders Ihe financlal statements and resulls of the Group for the period ended for
each guarar, the performance of the business of the Group, new business development propasals, policies and
sirateaic |ssuas affecting the Group's bugingss and factors imposing potenlial risks in lhe business of the Group.

I the Interval between Board mestings, for excaptional matters requiring wrgenl Board declslons, Boards
dpprovel are soughl via ciroular resolutions, which are attached willy sufliclenl and relevant informalion reguired
foran informad decision to ba mads.

In accardance with the Company’s Artleles of Assoclation, a1 least one third (1/3) of the Directors or the number
nearest o cne-lhird (173, shall retire by rolation at each Annual General Meeling @nd &t leasl once every threa
(3) veare. The Direclors rativing lrom ofice shell be ehigible for re-alection by the sharshclders.

Directors Training

The Diractors are aware af the nead for continuous updates of Ihalr skills and knowladge to marimize lhair
effectlvensss a3 Diredlons and assist them In discharging their duties during heir lenure of service. Durng the
year, they have altendsd, either calleclively or individually, various programs and briefing lo keep them updated
an e requiatony changes as well as future market developments in the giohal financial market.

The: foliowing are fraining programs, seminars and conferences allanded by Directors of Ihe Company during
the financial year anded 31 Dacambar 2010,

(i} Malavsian Invesire Relalions Assaciation-Training an "The Hole of PR In Publis Listed Cempany”
{iy  MEWG-Saminar on "Promaoting the Corperale Governanoe Agenda-Ralsing the Bar”

(i)  Mandaiory Aceraditation Programme for Diractar of Public Lisled Company

{lv) ‘7 Days Corporata Directors Training

{¥)  MSWG-Lorporale Yauation-Whal to look for & Invest Smartly

ivi)  Intermal Audil Quality Assessment by institute of Intermal Auditars Malaysia {ILARM)

{vit)  Matinnal Conferancs on Intemal Audiling 2010 by 1AM

(vill) Strategizing Communications in a Public Listed Company by Bursa Securities

Board Committees

Ms part of ks efforts 1o ensure the effective discharge of its dubies, the Board has delegated caeriain tunctions to
certain Committess, namely Audit Committee, Mamination Commitles and Remuneration Committea with aach
oparating within its clearly dafina terms of reference The Chairrman of the various Commiittess will repart 1o the

Board the outcoms of the Commillaa maatings.

Annual Report 2010
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The Board has established the fallowlng Committess to assist the Board 0 the exedution of s dutles:-
{1} Audlt Committee

The compositicn and terms of refersnce of e Audit Commitiee are detailed i the Audil Committes Report
aopadrnmg In pages 15 to 18 af this anneal report.

(i) Nomimation Committes

The Nomnation Commiles comprses 1he following thres Non-Exsculive Directors, twa of whiom ae
|relependent ;-

Siow Kee Yen (Chairman / Independeant Non-Exesulive Director)
Adlllal bintl Ahmad Kordin (Member ! Independent Non-Executive Directar)
Azhar bin Mayan (Mamber | Mon-Independenl Mon-Executive Directar)

Tha tenma of raferanca of the Mamination Committes was raviewad by the Board and all mambers of e
Maormingtion Gommittes were re-nominated smd re-appointed. Tne term of office of the Nomimation Gommites
I thraa {3) years and may ba ra-naminatad and m-appointaa by the Board,

The MNomination Committes reviews e required mix of skills ang experience and other gualities and
competarcies af ite Directors. The funclion of the Nominstion Committes = to dentify and recommesnd
candidates to the Boand and its commitiees. as wall as assessing the offectiveness of the Board as a wholo
and The commillecd of the Boar

(1) Remuneration Committes

The Remunaration Commiltea comprizes the following thres Non-Execotive Dirsctars, lwo of whom are
Indepsndent -

Aciillal bintl Ahmad Nordin (Chairparsen | Indapendant Non-Execufive Director)
Slow Kee Yen (Member ! Indzpendant Non-Executive Director)
Azhar bin Nayan (Membe! | Mon-Independen) Non-Execulive Directar)

The: terms of reference of the Remureralion Cormmilles wes raviewed by the Board and all the msmbes of the
Remuneration Commitiee were re-nominated ano re-appointed. The term of affice af the Remumeraiion
Caommittea e threa (3] years-and may ba re-nominated and me-appointed by tho Board The Committes s
responsibla for recommeanding fo the Board from lme o Hme, the remanseation packagas of the Execlive
Direstars of the Group, Tre Board shall declde on he remuneratlon packages upon considering the
recommendations made by the Remuneration Commilise,

All Clrectors are paid meating allowances Tor thedr attendance at Board and ¢ or Board Comemiltas meetings.

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

The Company skall s=surs the level and make-up of remunaration 8 sufficent 1o altract and relain the
Directors needed bo run the Compary successfully, Currently, the Remuneration Commillse asseases the
Ewscuylbve Dimectors’ remunarstion packages so 23 to recommend the Executive Direclors remurieration
packages to the Board for approval. The Exccutive Directors shall abstain from participating in the discussion
with fesapact o thail remananation packagas. Tha delails of the Diectors’ Raemoiaration for the finsncial yaar
gndad 31 Decembar 20N are disclosed in Nole 10 of the Notes (o lhe Finansial Stalement hersin,

Ihe Executive Direclors” remuneration comprises basic salary, Directors' toes and allowances. Other
customary benefits 1o the Group are made availahle as appropriata. Any saiary reviews will taks nko account
markel ralas ang tha performance ol the individual and the Group,

12 Annual Repert 2010
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Statement On Corporate Governan

The MNon-Exccutive Dircclors' remuneralion comprises Bes and allowances. Detarminalion of sueh
femunefalion is balancad Wilh heir expaecled mles and esponsabililies incliding any addibonal work and
contibufion required.

The Board has considerad {he disclosune of detafls of the remuneration of each Director as stipulated in the
Code. The Board s of the view thal the {ransparency and accountability aspects of Corporate Govemance as
apolicable to Birector's Remunerstion are appropriataly served by Lhe “band dizsclozure” a2 reguired by the
Listng Requirements.

DIALOGGUE WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Group recognizes the imperiance of communication with shereholders and Investors and keeping them
informed of the Group’s developments through announcements vie Burza LINK. in addition, other corporate
information matensls are avalable to gl sharehelders in the Company’s Annual Repors and Circulars o
Shareholders.

The Boand encourages full parlicipation by sharehoiders al fhe Ainnual General Meelings and Extraordinary
Gensral Mealings of the Company where appartunily are given 1o the sharehalders 10 ralse questiens and

seek clarfization on the bBusiness and parfarmance of the Campany

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financlal Reporting

In presenting tha annual financial statements and quarterly announcaments of financial results, the Board
aime [o present a oalanced and meaningful assessment of the Group'e financial positions and prospects. Tha
Board iz assisted by the Audll Commilles in overseaing the Groups financial mpodting processes \nd
accuracy of its fimancial repariing.

Dirgctors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors of the Company are responsible far keeping propar accounting records which disclnse wiih
reascnable apeuracy at any lime |he financial posilion of the Group snd of the Company.

The Directors @re required to ensure thal the financial stalements for each financial year are properly drawn
up in accordanca with the previsions of the Companias Act, 1865 and approved accounting standards 50 &5 fo
glve a true and f2ir view of thae state of alfalrs of the Group ana of the Company as al the end of the fimancial
year end and of e results and cash Rows of the Group and of the Campany for the financial ywar than andead.

In prepanng thoss fnancizl stalemanis of the Group and of tha Company for the linencial year ended 51
December 2010, the Group has acoplad the approprisle accountng policies and applied them consistantly
and all applicanla aporoved accounting standards nave pean followsd The financial statemants are praparad
on & galrdg concam basis.

Internal Conirol
The Board acknowledges its overall responsibdity for maintaining a sound system of intemal conmol o

safequarnd sharsholdars' invashiment and [he Group's asssts, This includes ansuring the review of (ha
adequany and Integrity of 1he system of intemal control In managing 1he principal risks of the Group.
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The Board has reviewsd fhe adequacy and integrity of the Group's state of intarnal control and the Group's
Stalement on Intemal Control is set out in pages 15 to 20 of this anrual raport.

Relationship with External Auditars

The role of tha Audit Commiltaa o relation to the exiemal auditors is disclosed (n the Beporl of Audil Comimities
sat cut in pages 15 to 18 of thiz annual regort

Internal Audit Function

The Group's has oulsourcs its Internat Audit o assist the Audil Commitiee in the discharge of its duties and
responshiities. The intemal Audit funclion includes evaluation of the processss by which signifizant risks are
identifiad Rssaszsad and managed Such audits are camed oul lo ensure insbtuted controls are appropriate,
effectively applied and within accaptable nsk axposures consistanl with the Group's rigk managemant palicy.
The total coct incurmed was RM45, 888,

ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION

Share Buyback
During tha financial year. thera wera no sharas buyback oy the Company

Options, Warrants or Canvertible Securities
The Company did not issus any options, wamans or converlible securitles during the finencal year ended 31
Decembear 2010,

American Depository Receipt (ADR) or Slobal Depository Recaipl (GDR) Programme
Ciuring the financial yesr, the Company did not sponsar-any ADR or GDR programmea.

Sanclion andior Panalty
The Company s not aware of any sanclion andfor panalty imposed on the Company and 5 subsidianas,
Directars ar management by the refevant reguletary bodies during the insncial year ended 31 Decermber 2010

Variance in Resulls
There were no matens! varation in resulls,

There were no deviatlon ol 10% or mere In the profil after lax and rminority inlerest betwaen the audited and
unaLditad results annoencad for the financial year ended 37 December 2010,

Mon-audll fees
Curing 1he financal year. lhere wers no non-audit fees paid by the Company and its subsidiaries o he
Company's external auditors or a firm and its affliates as professional faa.

Profit Guarantees
During the financial vear, there wore no profit guarattes givan By the Compary.

Material Contracte
Durng the financial vear, there were no material conlracts entarad nlo by Ihe Company or I8 subeidianies,
invalving Directors” and major sharaholders interest,

Contracts Ralating to Loans
There were no materal contracts rekating to ivans by the Company imvolving Directors and major sharsholders.

Uitilisation of Proceeds
The Company did not implerment any fund raising exercise during the financial year.

Recurrent Related Party Transactions of Revenua and Trading Nature (RRPT)
The information an RRPTs for the finandial year iz presantad n tha Audiled Financial Statemants in [his amiual
report and tha Circular 1o Sharsholdars.
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Audit Committee Report

MEMEERSHIP

The mambars of tha - Audit Commitles are a3 follows: -

Nama Desfgnation

Sioww Kee Yen (Chainman) Incepandent Mor-Executive Director
Adillah binth Ahmad Mordin Indepandent Mon-Exacutive Diractor
Azhar bin Nayan MNorn-Indaepandant Non-Executive Directar

TERMS OF REFERENCE
Composition of membera

The Board shall appoint the Audlt Commitee members from amongst thamseives, comprising no fewer than
three (3) nan-executive direclars. The majority of the Audll Committee membears shall be Independent directors.

In this respect, the Board adopts the definifion of “independemt director as defined under tha Listing
Reguirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad ("Bursa Secunilies”).

Al members of the Audit Committes shall be financially literate and 3t [easl one (1) member of the Audil
Committes must bel-

{a)  amemberof the Malaysian Institute of Accountant ("WMIA™, or
tb) it he is not @ member of 814, he must have at least three (3 vears of working experience and:
I e must have passed the examinations specified in Parl | of the First Schadule of the Accountants
Art 196T; ar
il he mugl ba g member of one of the gesodiations of the scoountanls specified in Parl || of e First
Schedula of the Accountants Acl 1967, or
(c)  fulfils such othar regquirements as prescribed by Bursa Socurities.

Mo alternate direcior of the Board shall be appainted a5 a membear af the Audit Commities.

The term of office and parformance of the Audil Commiltes and sach of its members shall be aviewad by the
Soartd al least once svery three [ 3) years to detemmine whethar such Audit Committes and members have carried
out thelr duties in accordance with their terms of reference,

Retirament and rezignation

If & mamber of the Audil Cammittes rasigna, diaz, or far any reason ceasas to ba a mambar with the resull thal
the number of membars iz reduced below three (3), the Board shall within thres (3) months of the sveam sppoint
such number of the new members as may be reguired lo Al the vacancy.

Chairman

The memoers of the Audit Commillee shall elect @ Chairman from amongst thair number who shell be an
independent direclor,

Irv the absense of lhe Chgirman f the Audil Committes, the other members of the Aodit Commilles shall
amongal themselves slact a Chairmen who must be indepandant direcloe to chair the meeting.

Secrotary

The Company Secrelary shall be the S=soretary of the Audit Committes and as & reperting procedurs, the
Minutes shall be arculated to all members of the Baard.
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Audit Committee Report

Maating

The Audit Commifies shall meat mgulardy, with dug notice of Bsies fo he distussad, and shall record ils
conclisions In dizchaming k2 dutms and responsibilites, In addition, the Chaiman may call for addibions|
meahings al any Iime at the Chaiman's discrelion

Upon the reques: of the external suditor, the Chairman of the Audit Commitlee shall convene a meeting of the
Audit Commithee to consider any makier the extamal auditor believes should be brought to the atention of the
diractors or sharahaldars.

Molice of Audil Committes meetings shall be givan to all the Audil Commiltes members unless the Audit
Commithes waives such reglrsmen.

Thi Chairman of the Audit Cammittee shall engage on @ continuous basis with sanior management, such az the
Chairman, he Chief Exacutiva Officer, tha Finance Dirmctar, the haad of intermal audit and the sextermnal =odilors
inorder to be kepl informed of metters affecting the Company,

The haad of internal audit and a represestabve of 1he exiemal auditors shiould normally atlend meetings, Other
Board members and empicyees may aftend mastings uson the invitation of the Auait Commitiez. However, ihe
Audit Committes snall meet with the exenal auditors withoul executive Board members prasant ot laast twice
a year and whenaver nacassany,

Cluestions ariging gt any mesang of e dudn Commilies shall be decded by 8 majorly of voles of the members
present. and 0 lhe case of egualny of votes. the Charman of he Audit Cammittess shall have 3 sesond or
casting vote.

For tha financial yaar anded 37 December 2010, a el of four (4) maatings were held, detsils of which ae &8s
follows:

Narme Atfendance
Siow Kaes Yan 44

Adillah bmdi Ahmad Mardan aid

Aetar b Mayan =IE

Minutes

Mimstes of each meeting snail be kept 21 1he registared office and distibuted o each member of the Audit
Committee and alsc 1o the other members of the Board. The Audit Commitee Chairman shall raport on aach
mesting 1o the Boarnd.

The minuies of the Audit Commiltee mesting shall be sigmed by the Chainman of the mesting al which ihe
prceedings wers held or by the Chasrman of the mexl suceeding meeling,

Quorum

The quorum for the Audit Commilize meeting snall oe the majorty of members present whom must be
independont direstors,

Ohjectives

The principal ohjactives of the Audit Committes am to assist tha Baard in discharging its statulory gubies and
responsibiiities relaling to accounting and reporting practices of the holding company and each of its
subsidiaries, Inaddiion, the Audil Commitles shall
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Audit Committee Report

id) avaluate e quality of the audils pedfomed by the intemal and extemal auditors,

) drewide gesursnes thal tha rancl informabion presanted by managarment is relavant, melisbie and tmely;
() oversee compliznce with faws and regulations and obsenance of a proper code of conduct; and

] datarmins (he gualily, 2deguacy and effecliveness of the Group's contral anvicanmenl,

Authority

The AUt Cammittea shall, In accordancs: With a [JI'!‘.'."E'EII:!L]I‘E to be detarmined El'y' the Board and al the CApenss
al the Company,

{a)

(b

have expliclt authorty o Investgate any mater within s temms of reference, the resournes 1o do 5o,
and full access to infarmation. All employses shall be dirscied to so-aperate as reguasted by
members of the Audlt Commities.

have full and unlimited/unrestricted aceass ta 2l infarmallon and documeanis!resources which are
required te perfiom s dutles as well as o the inlemal and extemal auditors &end senior management
of the Company @and Group.

() oblain independent profasslonal or other advice and 1o Invite cutsiders wilh relevant experience o
aitend, fnesessan.

d} have direct communication channels with the extemal suditors and person(s) camying out the internal
audil function ar activity (if any)

a) where the Audil Commities iz of the view that the maiter reporied by it to the Board hies nol been
satisfacionly resolved rasdlting ina breach of The Listing Beguirements, the Audil Committee shall
promplly repar such mallsr o Bursa Secunles,

Dutles and Responsibliities

The dulias and respansibilities of the Audit Commiltes are as follows:-

(a)
1]

(c)

1)

(=)

g

To conaider the appoiniment of the extamal auditor, the audit fee and any question of resignation or
dismizsal;

To discuss wilh the axtarnal auditor before the audit commences, the nature and scope of tha audil,
and snsure co-ordination where mora than one audit firm ig imvolvad,

To raview with the external auditer his evalusticon of the systern of Internal controls and his audit
report;

To review Ihe quartedy and year-and linancial statements of Ihe Board, focusing particularly on -

. any ochange in agcounting policies and practicas;

- significant adjustments ansing from the audit;

" the gaing concermn assumption; and

. campligncs willt acocunting standards and ather legal reguiremenls

To discuss problems and resereations ansing from the interim and final audits, and any matlar the
auditor may wish o distuss (in the absence of managemen!, where nocassary),

o review the external suditor's management lelter and mansgement's response;

Annual Repert 2010

17



(5] To oo the Follinwing, In mdation 1o e nbeimal 2odi fincticon -

. revigw the adequacy of the scopa, functions and resources of tha internal audit function,
and that it has the necessary authority to carry out ifs work,

N review the intarnal audit programme and results of the inlemal audi process end, wiere
necassary, ansure that appropriate aclicns are taken on the recommenacations of the
internal audit function;

a ravigw any appraigal or assessmant of the parformance of mambars of the internal audit
tunction,
. Bpprove any appointment or termination of sanior slaff mambers of the internal audit

funoction; and

. take cognizancs of resignatians of inlarnal audil slafl mambere ané provide ha resigning
eraff mamber an apporiunity 1o submil his reasons for resigning.

(h) To consider any related party transactions and confiict of imarest situation that may arlse within the
Comgany or Group including any transaction, procedurs or course of conduct thal raises questions of
management integrity;

1 Tex resprar| 12 finclings art the financial and managamenl paformanca, and other radarial mattars o
the Board,

fi) To consar the major findings of intermal mvestigations and management's rezpanse,

3 Ta verify the allosation of employess’ share option schame ("ES0OS™) in campliance with the criteria

as stiputated n the by-laws of ES0OS of the Company, fany:
h To determine the nermit of the inlermal audit kinction;
(m}) To comgidar other wopics a8 defined by the Board; and

[n) To consder and examine such other matters as e Audil Committes considers appropriate.

ACTIVITIES OF THE COMMITTEE DURING THE YEAR

Tha Audit Cemmittes Is empowered lo carmy cut Lhe fallowing duties during the financial year under review in
accardance with its term of referencs :

2] Reviawad the axternal auditors' scope of work and audit plans for the year Prioe o the sudil,
repraseniatives from the extarnal suditors presentaa thelr audit strategy and plan.

(b) Reviewea with the extemal auditers, major iasues ansing from the audit

6] Rewviewed the Group's imemal gudil plan.

[¢) Reviewed the internal sudit reports. The Audit Cammites waa briefed on the audt reparts issued and
on the isgues raised By the intemal Auditors an various aspocts of the systam in oparatian, practices
and procedures and intemal confmols. Special nolice was taken af significant issues ralsed in'the audit
reports and that adeguale corrective actions had been taken by the Operating Management (o rectify
he weaknesses,
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Statement On Internal Control

INTRODUCTION

Pursuant fo paragraph 1526 (b} of the Main Markst Listing Reguirements of the Bursa Malaysis Securities
Bearhad (Bursa Secuities), the Boarg j= pleassd 1o provide the following stalement on the siale of intemal
cantral of the Graup for the financial year sndesd 31 Decsmber 2000, which) hes bean prepared jmaccardanc
with the Statement an Intemal Canirel - Guidahneg for Directers of Public Lisled Companias issusd by e
Institule of Intermal Auditors Malaysie end sdopted by the Bursa Securilles.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITY

The Board recoghises that it | responsible for the Group's sysiem of intemal cantrol and for reviewing its
adequacy and integrity.

The Group's syetem of inlemal control (5 designed to manags ne prncipal business riss that may Impada the
Group lor achizving ils business objectives. Motwithsianding, as with any intemal conlrol sysiem, the Group's
systemn of intemal control iz designed to manage rether than eiminate the nsk ol failure 1o achieve business
cbjpctives. Ir pursuing those oojectives, thesa gystems can only provide reasonable bul not abeolule
ASEUrANGE 3gainst material missiatement or loss.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Board recogrizas that effective risk management is pant of geod business management practices. Tha
Enterprise Risk Maragemeant Framework Sllows the Groun to identify, evaluate and manage rsks wilhin
defined sk paremeters thal affect the achievemeant of the Sroup’s business objectives.

Whils: Lthe Board s uliimately responsible for ideniffying the Group’s rsks, the Implementation and the
establishment of the Group's Risk Maragement Framework are delegated o the Management Commiites
who plays a pivotal rele i contineously menitoring the mplementation of the mitigating action plans and
agsessing the mlavance and adegquacy of the nsk management and control process in light of changes to the
Group'e risk profile.

INTERNAL CONTROL MECHANISM

Tne Board eniusts the daily running of the business o the Exenutive Direclor (“EDY) and his management
team. The ED and hiz mansgement team receive timely infarmation peraining to perormance and profitability
of Ihe Graup Ihrough morthly and weekly reports whieh Include quantitative and gualitative trends and
anslyras.
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The ED plays a pivelal role in communicaling the Board's expectalions of the systams of intemal control o
rmenagement This Is achieved. on a day-lo-day basls, thiugh fis aclive participation in the operations of the
business as well az atlendance at various saheduled Manegement Committee meelings. The Exscutive
Dlrectors meet with the Cepartrnental Managers weeakly 1o discuss Production, Operational, Sales ane Human
Resource issues and monitars the progress of these issuss through dally interaction with 1he manage ment
eam.

The other key elameniz of the Group's exieting svstam of inlemsl contrale are as followe:

* Linalily Policy that dearly outhnes the Group's direchar,

* Clear orgamsaton structurs with cevelopsd reporing (nes that are IS0 compliant

* Schaduled Management Commilies mastings involving the review of the Group’s oparations,
financial performance and human resource matiens

* Manthly meparts o (ha 20 containing both financlal and nan-financial information

* An imglicit understanding of the Gompany's autharly mits,

* Slruclured Talning far emploveas based on the apnuat izining plan.

* An Independent intermal audit funstion.

" Internal Quality Audits as-specifisd by |30 for cemain subsidiznes. Results of these sudits are
reportad o the ED.

The systern of Intarnal contrels was satisfactory and there has beer no signifizant breakdown or waakness in
the sysiam of Iniemal conirol of the Group thal might nave result=d in maienal losses incumed by the Group
for the finaneial year ended 31 December 2010, The Group continues to take necessary measures 1o
sirengthen ita inlzrmal vontrel stucture and manege |ts nsks.

ASSURANCE MECHANISM

The Audit Committae ("AC") ia tesked by e Board with the duty of reviewing and monitoring ne effectivenass
of the Group's systems of ntemal conlrol,

The Company has an independent internsd sudit furdtion o condust review on intsms| controle. During 1he
financial yvear, the Internal audit function has bean fully outsaurced lo a profeasional service provider firm ancd
repors directly to the AC, The ocutsourcad intamal audit funclion reviews the key activibes of tha Group an tha
tasis of an annual audit plan approved by the AC. Reports and corrective achons arising from indermal audit
raviews are repored to the AL

CONCLUSION

Tha Boand remains committed owards keaping with the avar-changing business environment in ordar o
suppar! the Group's business and size of oparations. Cegnisenl of this Tact. the Beand In stiving for
cantinuous improvemeant will pul in plece appraprate action plans, when necessary, to turther enhence the
Group's system of intamal contral,

The Statement is made in accordance with the reselution of the Board of Directars on 22 Aprll 2011,
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Directors” Report

The directors have pleasure in presenting their repert together with the audited financial
stataments of the Graup and of tha Company far the inansial year andad 31 Decambsar 2010

Principal activities

The principal activifies of the Company are investment holding and provisian of management
services. The principal activities of the subsidiarias are manufacturing and sale of cormugated
boards and ¢arton baxes.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these principal aclivities during the

linancial yesr.
Results
Group Company
RM'000 RM' 000
Friofil for the vear, net of lax 4 B58 34
Prafit attributatile 1o,
Cwnars of lhe parant 4 BEQ 89
Mimority interests (i3] -
4 BHE 29

There were no matarial transters o or from resenves or provisions during the finandial year other
than as disclosed In the financial statements.

In the opinian of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Campany
during the financial year wera not substantially affacted by any ltem, fransaction or avent of a
material and unusual nature ather than the effects arising from the changes in accounting
policies due to the adoption of Financial Reporting Standard ("FRS") 138 Financial Instruments:
Racognition and Measurament which resulted in the Group's profit net of tax dacreasing by
Rbd129 000 as disclosed in Mota 2.2{c) to the financial statements.

Dividend

Ma dividend was paid or declared by the Company since 31 December 2009, The directors da
not propose any final dividend 1o be paid in respect of the cument financial year.
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Directors’ Report

Directars

The names of the directors of the Company in offics since the date of the last report and at the
date of this reporl are ¢

Sai Chin Hogk

See Wan Seng

Aing Kwee Teng

Siow Kea Yen

Tuan Hajl Azhar bin Mayan

Adillah binti Ahmad Mordin

Lim Tau Lik (retired on 26 June 2010)

Directors' banafits

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor i any fime during that vear, did there subsist any
arrangement 1@ which the Company was a party, whereby the directors might acouire benefits by
means of acquisition of sharee in or debenlures of the Company or any olber body corporate.

Since the end of the previous finandial year, no direclor has received ar become entitled ko
recelve a banefit {other than benefits Included in the aggregate amount of emolumants received
or due and receivable by he direclors or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Company
as shown in Nota 10 to the financial statamants) by raasan of & contract made by the Company
or a ralated carparation with any director ar with 2 firm of which he is a member, or with 3
company in which he has a substantial financial interest, except as disclosed in MNote 30 to the
financial slatemeants.

Directors’ interests

According to the register of diregtors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors In affice atthe end
of the financial year In sharas |6 the Company and Its related corparations during the financial
year were as follows:

Number of ordinary shares of RM1 each

1.1.2010 Acquired Sold 31.12.2010
Direct Interest
Sai Chin Hoek B46 400 - - 846,400
Ang Kwesa Tang 10,000 - - 10,000
Siow Kee Yen 130,500 140,000 - 230,500
Tuan Hajl Azhar bin Nayan 25,000 - - 25,000
Adillah binti Ahrmad Nordin 14,000 - - 14,000
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Directors” Report

Dirsctars' interests (continued)

Number of ardinary shares of RM1 each

1.1.2010 Acquired Sold 31.12.2010
Indirect inferest
Sal Chin Hack 22,305,794 - . 223057948
Ang Kwae Teng 18,634,884 - - 18,634 B&a
See Wan Sang 18,634,858 - - 12,634 BE3

Sai Chin Hock, Ang Kweasa Teng and See Wan Seng, by virlue of theirinterests in shares in the
Company, are also deemed interasted in shares in all the Company's subsidiaries to the extent

that lhe Company has an inlerest.

Other statutory infermatian

(a} Belors the income statements and balance sheels of the Group and of the Company were
made out, the directors toak reasonable steps,

{i) toascerain that praper action had heen taken in relation ta the writing off of bad debts
and the making of provisian for doubtful debls and satishied themselves that all known
bad debis had bean written off and that adequate provision had been made for doubtiul
debis: and

(i} 1o ensurs that any current assets which ware unliksly to realise their values as shown in
the accounting recards in the ardinary course of business had been written down to an
amaunt which they might be axpectad so to raallsa.

() Al the date of this repor, the directors are not eware of any circumstances which would:

{il render the amount written off as bad debts ar the amount provided for as daubtful debts
in the linancial statements of the Group and of the Company inadequale 1o any
substantial extent; and

(it} render the values aliribuled to the current assats 0 the financial statements of the
Group and of the Company miskeading

{c) Al lhe dale of this report, Ihe directors are nol aware of any circumslances which have
arisen which would render adherence 1o the exisiing method of valuation of assets or
llabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

{d) Atthe date af this repart, the directars are nol aware of any ciroumstances not athenwise

deall with in this report or financial staterments of the Group and of the Company which
would rander any amount stated |n the financial statements misleading.
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Other statutory Information {continued)

{e) As at the dale of this report, there does nat exist.-

(i) anycharge on the assels of the Group or of the Company which has erisen since the
end of the financial year which secures lhe liabilities of any other person, or

fil} any contingant liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end
of the financial yaar,

if] In the cpinion of the directors:-
(i} no contingant ar other liability has become enforceabls or is likely fo become
enforcesble within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which

will or may affect the ahbility of the Group or of the Cempany to meet its obligations when
they fall dus; and

(i} no item, transaction or evant of @ materdal and unusual nalure has arisen in the interval
batwasn the and of the financisl year and the date of thiz repert which iz likely to aflect
subsrtantially the results of the aperations of the Group ar of the Company for tha
financial year in which this report is made.

Auditors

The auditors, Ermnst & Yaung, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed an behaif of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the direclors dated 22 Aprll
2011.

Sai Chin Hock Ang Kwea Teng

Melaka, Malaysia
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Statement By Directors

Statement by directors
Pursuant to Section 189 (15) of the Companies Act, 1965

We, Sai Chin Hock and Ang Kwse Tenqg, being bva of the directors of Omapaper Berhad, do
hereby state that, in the apinion of the directars, the accompanying financial stataments set oul
an pages 30 1o 92 ars drawn up I accordance with Financial Reporting Slandards and the
Companies Act, 1865 in Malaysia so as o give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group and of the Company a= al 31 December 2010 and of their financial perforrmance and cash
flowes far the year then endead,

Tha information sat aul in MNots 40 on page 922 10 the linancial statemante have bean preparad in
accardance wilh the Guidance on Special Matter Mo. 1, Delermination of Realised and
Unrealised Profite or Lossas in the Contex| of Disclosure Pursuant o Bursa Malaysia Szcurities
Berhad Listing Requirements, as issuad by the Malaysian Inslilute of Accounlanis

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resalution of the directors dated 22 Aprll
2011,

Sai Chin Hock Ang Kwea Teng

Melzka, Malaysia

Statutory declaration
Pursuant to Section 169 (16) of the Companies Act, 1965

|, Sal Chin Hack, heing the director primarily responsible for the financial managameant of
Ormapaper Berhad, do solemnly and sincarely declars that the accompanying financial
statermants set aut on pages 30 to 92 are in my opinion correct, and | maka this solemn
declaratian conscientiously balieving the same to be trus and by virtus of the provisians of the
Statutary Declarations Act, 1980.

Subscrbed and sclemnly deciared by
the abovenamed Sai Chin Hock at Melaka
in the State of Melaka an 22 April 2011 Sal Chin Hock

Batore me,

ONG SAN KEE
Commissioner for Qaths
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Independent Auditors’ Report To Th
Members Of Ornapaper Berhad

Report on the financial statements

We hava audited the financial siatements of Omapaper Barhad, which comprise tha statemeants of
financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2010, and the stalements
of compranensive Income, stalements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the
Graup and of tha Company far the year than ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and olher explanalory notes, as setoul on pages 30 1o B2,

Direclors” responstbiiy for the financial sfatements

The directars of the Company are responsible for the preparalion and fair presentation of these
Mnancigl slalements in.accordance wilh Financial Reporting Standards and the Companles Act,
1465 in Malaysia. This respensibility includas: designing, implementing and maintaining intermal
conirml relevant o the preparation and fair presenlation of financial statemants that are frea from
malesial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecling and applying approprate
accounting pallcies; and making accounting estimates thal are reasonable in the circumstances.

Augitors’ responsibility

Cur responsibllity is to express an opinion on these financial slatements basad on our audit. \We
conducted our audit in accordance with appraved standards on audifing in Malaysia. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtgin reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free fram materizl
misstatameant.

An audit invalves performing procedures to oblain audil evidence aboul the amounls and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procadures selected dapend on our judgment,
including the assessment of riske of material misstaternent of the financial stalements, whether
due ta fraud ar arror. In making those risk assessments, we conslder internal cantrol relavant to
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procaduras Ihat are appmnrlala In the circurnstancas, but not far the purpase of expressing an
opinion on lhe effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
approprialenass of the accounting pelivies used and the regsonablensss of accounling eslimates
made by the directars, as wall as evaluating the ovarall prasentation of the financial statements.

We balleve that the audit evidence we have abteined |s sufficient and appropriate to provide a
bases for our audit opinicn.
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I owr opinion, the financial stalements have been properly drawn up in accardance will Financial
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1865 in Malaysia so as le give a true and fair view
of the financial pastion of the Group and of the Company as at 31 Dacember 2010 and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

Repart on other lagal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with the requiraments of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the
toliowing:

(&) Inouropinion, the accounting and ather records and the registers requirad by the Act lo be
kapt by the Company and by itz subsidlaries of which we hava acled as audifors have heen
propery kept in accordance with the provisions of the Azt

(B} We have considaered the financial statements and the auditers’ repart of the subsidiaries of
which we have not acted as suditors, which are Indicatad in Mote 15 to the financial
statemants,

{z) We are salisfizd thal the financial stalements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidaizd
with the financial statements of the Company are in form and content appropriate and proper
for the purposes of the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and we have
received satisfactory informalion and explanations required by us for those purposes.

(d) The audilors repaorts on the financial statements of the subsidiaries were not subject io any
guallfication and did nat include any comment raguired to be mada under Seclion 174(3) of
the Act,

Other matters

The supplementary nformation set oul in Note 40 on page 92 is disclosed to meet the
requirement of Bursa Malaysla Securities Berhad. The directors are responsible for the
preparalion of the supplementary infermation in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter MNo.
1, Dalermination of Realised and Unrealized Profits or Losses in the Contaxt of Disclosure
Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Reguiremenls, as issued by the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants ("MIA Guidance™) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securnilics Berhad.
I our opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all malerial respects, in accordance
with the MLA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad,
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Other matters (continued)

This repar] is made solely to the membears of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section
174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysla and for no other purpose. We do nat assume
responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

Ernsl & Young Lee Ah Too

AF: 0039 2187/09/11(J)
Chararad Accountants Charterad Accountant
Melaka, Malaysia

Date: 22 April 2011
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Note
Continuing operations

Ravanus 4
Cost of sales

Gross profir

Other items of income

Interest Income 5
Other income g
Other Items of axpanse

Administralive expenses

Salling and marketing expenses

Finance costs 7
Other expansos

Profit before 1ax B
Income tax expense T
Profit, net of tax, representing

total camprehensive income

for the year

Frofit attributable to;
Ownars of the parent
Minority interests

Earnings per share altributable

to owners of the parent (sen)

Eazle 12
Diluted 12

atements Of Comprehensive Income
(For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2010)

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
RM000 RM 000 RM'000 RM'000
216,517 166,461 451 1 560
[181,776)  {125,763) - -
34,744 30,692 451 1,660
11 - -
932 931 - 1
(7.328) (§,968) (262) (247)
(12,507)  [10,302) (&) )
{3,136} (3,044) = 2
{5.876) [5,161) (89) (82)
£,855 5,158 95 1,218
(2.207) (1,352) i(7) [5)
4.658 4,606 il 1.213
4,588 4,605 89 1,213
89 201 - -
4,658 4,808 59 1,213
6.1 g1
6.1 G.1

The accompanying accouniing polses-and esplanatory notes lnmm an ntsgral part of the Inaneal slatemans.
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Statements Of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2010

Note 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
Group RM'000 RM'DO0 RM'000
{restated) (restated)
Assets
MNoncurrent assets
Property, plant and eguipment 13 26,194 83420 B3,072
Land use rights 14 3,726 3,837 3,948
Goodwill 14 1,633 1,633 1,633
Invesiment sacurities 17 244 254 254
91,797 89 144 88,8907
Current assats
Inventories 18 23,655 23134 21 674
Trade and other receivables 19 58,674 B4 270 62 584
Tax racavarable 547 537 432
Cash and bank balancas 20 12,545 13,565 5,018
Other current assets 29 3725 373 =
99196 101,884 B9 706
Assats hald for sale 22 441 - -
99,636 101,884 B9, 708
Total assets 91,433 169,028 178.613

Equity and liabilities

Current liabllitles

Borrowings 23 53.837 59,910 60,137
Trade and other payabiles 24 25,866 21413 12,965
Current tax pavable 313 287 330

80,018 B1.625 7432
Net currant asseis 15,620 20,258 16,274

Non-current liakilities

Borrowings 23 G103 6139 8,008
Deferred lax liabilities 25 2,546 3113 3,078
Man-current iahifities 4,049 9252 8,083
Total liabilities 83 085 o0.8TT 82 518
Net aszols 12 368 100,157 5§,094
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. Statements Of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2010

Nate 31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
Group RM"000 RM'GOD RM'000
(restated) {restated)

Equity attributable to owners

of the parent
Shara capital 26 75,251 75,251 75,251
Shara premium 27 11,156 11,156 11,156
Helained eamings 28 15,356 13,208 9,356
101,763 98,615 95,763
Minority interests 805 538 335
Total equity 102,368 100,151 96,098
Total equity and liabilities 181,433 191,028 178,813

The accompanying accounting pelicics and @xplanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statemenis.
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Statements Of Financial Position
As at 37 December 2010

Company
Assetls

Mon-current assals
Investment in subsidianes

Current assets

Trade and ather receivables
Tax recoverable

Zash and bank balances
Dther curmant assels

Total assets
Equity and liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and othar payahl&s
Total liakilities

Net current assets
Net assetls

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital

Share premium

Retained earmnings

Total aquity
Total equity and liahilities

ORNAPAPER BERHAD siss0sw)

i'nzorparatad In Melay=ia)

Note

15

18

20

4

24

26
27

F.122010  31.12.2009
RMW'000 RM'000
75,585 75,586
75,585 75,585
10,780 10731
142 86
215 260

10 -
11,147 11,077
86,732 BB G662
3 56
31 50
71,716 11,027
86,701 B §12
75,251 75251
11,156 11,156
294 206
BE, 701 BE 612
88,732 86,662

The accompanying accounting paliches and cxplanaory notzs form an integral par of the financlal storemeants.
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(For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 20°10)
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Statements Of Changes In Equity -.

{For The Financial Year Ended 37 December 2010}

Mon-distributable  Distributable

Share Share Retlained Total
Nate capital premium earnings afuity
Company RM'000 RM'C00 RM'D00 RM'000
At 1 January 2010 75251 11,159 205 846,612
Total comprehensive Income - - B9 &4
At 31 December 2010 75,251 11,158 284 86,701
At January 2009 75.251 11,156 (255) 85,152
Total comprehansive incomea - - 1213 1,213
Transaction wilh ownears:
- Dividends on ordinary shares 29 - - (753 {753)
At 31 December 2009 75,251 11,154 205 86,612

The accompanying accounting palicies and explanaony notzs form an inteoral pard of the financial stmements.
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Operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustmants far:

Allowanee for iImpairmeant loss;

- Trade receivables

- Other recaivables

Bad debts written off

Depraciation and amorisation:

- Property, plant and eguipment

- Land use rights

Fair value logs on investmenl securities
designated at fair value through profit
ar loss

Nel gain on disposal of property,
plant and sguipment

Reversal of allkawance for impairment
lass on trade receivables

Interest expense

Interast incomse

Total adjustimenis

Operating cash flows before
changes in warking capital

Changas in warking canital

Increase In invanlories

Incraase in trade and othar
racalvablas

Increasef{decreasea) in trade and othear
payables

Tatal changes in warking capital

Cash generated from operation

Interest paid

Intarast recelved

Taxes paid

Net cash flows fromf{used in)
cparating activities

A Annual Report 2010

MNote

19{a)
19{b)

13
14

Statements Of Cash Flows

(Far The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2010)

Group Company
2010 2008 20110 2009
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
6,154 B 158 a8 1,218
410 T46 . -
78 - - -
Ba0 19 - -
6,884 492 - -
"M 111 - -
1 - a -
(99) (272) : -
(276) (11)
3,136 3044 - -
{11} {8) = =
11,124 10,121 - -
17,983 18,270 96 1,218
(521} {1.460) - -
{2.512) (2,817) (59) (222)
44449 B.453 (18] 18
1416 4,176 (771 (2043
19,399 20,455 19 1,014
(3.136) {3.044] o -
11 ) - -
(1.626) {1.452) (63) (42)
14,6448 15.967 [44] 872




Statements Of Cash Flows

(For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 20000

Investing activilies

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Met cash oulllow on acguisibon of a
subsidiary

Praceads from dispozal of proparty,
plant and squipment

Mat cash flows used in investing
activities

Financing activities
Crawdown/(repayment) of term lcans
Paymant of dividend

Repaymant of finance lease pavabies
{Decraase)incraase in short term
borrowings

Net cash flows used in

Anancing activities

Net increase/{decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents

at 31 Decembar

Note

13(c)

24

20

(Inearparaad |5 Malaysla)

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

RM RM RM RM
(6,808)  [3,340) .

i - (1) 5

165 541 - s
[6,641) {2.808) i1) =

326 (456) - :

. (753) . (753)
(3.792)  (3,274) - :
(3,432} 531 -

(6.898)  (3,952) s (753)
1,100 8,207 (45) 219
8,350 (857) 260 41
9,459 8,350 215 260

The accompanying accounting palicies and explanaony notzs form an inteoral pard of the financial stmements.
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1. Corporate information

Omapapear Berhad i a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia,
and iz listed an the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Barhad. The principal placa of
business is situated at No. 3988, Kawasan Perindustran Penngkat IV, Batu Berendam, 75350
Melaka, Malaysia,

The principal activities of the Company are Invesiment holding and provision of management
samnses. The pnnaipal aclivities of the subsidiaries are manufaciuring and sale of corrugated
boards and carton boxes There have baen no signiicant changes i the nature of the principal
activities during the finanzial year.

2. Significant accounting policies
21 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standards [FRS) and the Companies Act, 1565 1n
Malaysia. Af the baginning of the current financial year, the Group and the Company
adopted new and revisad FRS which are mandalory fer financial periods beginning an or
aftar 1 January 2010 as described fully in Nots 2.2,

The financial slatemerils have also bean prepared an a histancal basis, unless othervise
Indicated in the accounting palicies below.

The financial siatemanis are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (RM'000) except when olherwize indicaled.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The aczaunting pelicies adopied are consistent with those of the previous financial year
except as indicated balaw.

On 1 January 2010, the Group and the Company adoptad, where applicable, the following

new and amended FRS and I1C Interpretations mandatory for annual financial pericds
Beginning on or after 1 January 204100
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(For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2010)

2. Significant accounting pelicies {continusd)

2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continuead)

FRS 4 Insurance Canftracts

FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disciosures

FRS 8 Qperating Segmenis

FRS 101 Presenlation of Financial Statements (Revised)

FRS 123 Barrowing Costs

FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Resognilion and Measuremenn
Amendments o FRS 1 Firsl-time Adoption of Financial Reparting Slandards
and FRS 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements: Cosl of

an Investmeant in & Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Enlily or Assooiaie
Amandments in FAS Z Share-basad Payment — Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Amendments 1o FRS 132 Financial Inslruments: Presentalion
Amendments to FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, FRS 7 Financial Instruments. Disclosures and 1
Interpretation 9 Reassessmenl of Embeddad Derjvatives

Improvements to FRS issued In 2004

IC Interpretalion 9 Reassessmenl of Embedded Derivatives

IC Intarpretalion 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairmenl

[T Interpretation 11 FRS 2 = Group and Treasury Share Transactions

[ Interpretation 13 Customar Loyalty Programmaes

iC Interpretation 14 FRE 118 — The Limit on a Defined Benefid Assat, Minimum
Funding Reguirements and their Interaction

TR i=3 Presentalion of Financial Statements of lslamic Financial Instilutions

Adoption of the above standards and Intarpretations did not have any effect on the
financial performance or position of the Group and of the Company except far those
dizcussed below.

{a) FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Prior to 1 January 2010, information about financial instruments was disclosed in
accordance with the requiremants of FRS 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation. FRS 7 introduces new disclosures to improve the information aboul
financial instruments. It requires the disclosure of qualitative and quantitative
information about expasure ta risks arising from financial instruments, including
specified minimum disclosures aboul credil risk, liquidity risk and market risk,
including sansitivity analysis to markat risk

The accompanying accounting palicies and explanzony notes form an integral part of the financial staements.
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2, Significant accounting policies [continued)

2.2  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{a} FRS 7 Financlal Ingtruments: Disclosures {continued}

The Group and the Company have applied FRS 7 prospeclively in accordance with
the transitianal provisions. Henos, the new disclosures have nol been applied to the
comparatives. The new disclosures are included thraughaut the Group and the
Company’s financial statements for he yvear ended 31 December 2010.

{by FRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised)

The revised FRS 101 intfroduces changes in the presentation and disclosuras of
financial stalements. The revised Standard separates owner and non-awner changes
in equily. The statemenl of changes in equity includes onfy delails of transactions with
owners, with all non-owner changss in equity presentad as a single line The
Standard also intraduces the statement of comprehansive income, with all items of
income and expense recognised in profit or loss, together with all other tems of
recognised Income and expanse racognised dirsctly in aquity, elthar in one single
slatement, or in bwo linked statemeants. The Group and the Company have elected o
present this statement as ona single statament

In addition, a statamant of linancial pesition is required at the beginning of the earliesl
comparative pered following & change in accounting policy, the cormection of an errar
or tha classification of items in the financial slatements,

The revised FRS 101 alzo requires the Graup and the Company to make new
disclosuras to enable users of the financial stataments to avaluate the Group's and
the Company's objeclives, policlas and procasses for managing capital (see Note
36).

The revised FRS 101 was adopted retrespectivety by the Group and by the Company,

{c) FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

FRS 139 establishes principles for racagnising and measuring financial assets,
finaneal labilities and some cantracts to buy and sell nen-financial items. The Group
and the Company hes adopted FRS 139 prospectively on 1 January 2010 in
accordance with the transiticnal pravisions. Thea effects arising from the adoption of
thig Standard has bean accounted for by adjusting the epening balance of retainad
eamings as &t 1 January 201 0. Comparativas ars not restated. The detalls of the
changes in accounting policies and the effects arising from 1he adoption of FRS 139
are discussed below:

40 Annual Report 2010



ORNAPAPER BERHAD (srasss-w)

|Inzarparated i Malayels)

Notes To The Financial Statements.

(For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 20710)

2. Significant accounting policias (continued)
2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
fe) FRE 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (continued)

Equity mstruments

Pricr to 1 January 2010, the Group classified its investments in equity instruments
which were held for non-trading purposes as non-current investments. Such
investments wers carmied at cost less impairment losses. Upan the adoption of FRS
1349, these investments, except for those whaose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, are designaled on 1 January 2010 al fair value through profil or loss and
accordingly stated at their feir values a3 al thal date amounting o RM3,000. AR
adjustment of RM10,000 has been made to thelr previous canmrying amounts and
recognised as adjusimenl Lo lhe opening balances of retained eamings as al 1
January 2010,

Invastmenta In equity Instruments with a camying amount of RM235.000 whoss fair
value cannot be relizbly measured at 1 January 2010 continue 1o be carriad al cost
less impairment lnsses. Mo adjusimants were made lo lhe opening balance af
relained eamings as at 1 January 2010

Impairment of trade receivables

Frior to 1 January 2010, provision for doubtful debts was recognised when il was
considered Uncallsciible. Upon the adoption of FRS 139, an impaiment loss is
recagnised when thera ia objective avidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred. The amount of the loss s measured as the difference between the
racalvable’'s carrying amounl and the prasant valua of (he sstimated fulure cash
llows discountad at the recelvable's arginal effective interest rate. On 1 January
2010, the Group remeasured the allowance for impairment losses on trade
receivables and as al that date In accordance with FRS 139 and the differance
of BM3.240,000 and the related tax effact of RMB10,00{ were recognised as
edjustments lo the opening balance of retained eamings as al 1 January 2010.
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2. Significant accournting policias {continuad)

22 Summary of slgnificant accounting policles (continued)

{c} FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (continued)
Finangial guaranise contragts

During the current and priar vears, the Company provided financial gugrantees o
banks in connection with bank lpans and other banking facilities granted to itz
subsidiaries, Pricr 1o 1 January 2010, the guarantees were accounted for and
disclosed as contingant liabllities in the inanoial statements of the Company.

Upaon the adoption of FRS 139, such guaramees are to be recognised initially at fair
valug. As al lhe date of first adoplion of FRS 139, all unexpired financial guarantees
issued were not recognised as no value has been placed on the guarantees provided
by the Company as the directors regard the value of the credil enhancement provided
by lhe said yuarantees to be minimal. This is because the bank loans and other
banking facilities granted under the guarantees are fully collateralised by fived and
floating charges over the properties, pianl and equipment and other assels of the
subsidigries.

[1iler fosE

Durina the currgnt and prior years, Interesi-free loans and advances were made
between the Company and its subsidiaries. Prior ta 1 January 2010, these loans and
advances ware racorded al cosl in the Company's linancial slatements. Upon Lhe
adaoption of FRS 134, the interesl-free |oans or advances confinue be reconded
initially al cost as the Company takes these loans in a form of shorl-lerm advances
and payable an damand. Therefore, he effect of discounting is considered as
immaterial and the fair value of the loans |s egual to the amount of the advances
given or received. No adjusimants were made to the opening balance of retained
grrnings as al 1 January 2010.
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(For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2010}

2. Significant accounting peolicies {continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting pollcies (continued)

(e} FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement [continued)

(d)

Tha following are effects arising from the ahove changas (n accounting palicies on
the Group's financial stalements ;

Increasef/{decrease)

As al Az af

31.12.2010 1.1.2010

Statement of financial posilion RM'000 RM000
Invastmenl securiliss (100 (8
Trada and othar receivables {34100 13.240)
Defarrad tax latilites (852) {810)
Retained sarmings {2.570) (2.441)
Increasel

(decrease]

2010

atem f comprehensive income RM"000
Ganeral expanzes 4
Salling expenses 170
Profit before tax 171
Incomea tax expanse 42

Frofit net of tas, represanting tolal comprahansive

Income far the year 129

The comparative figures hava nat besn restated.
Amendments to FRS 117 Leases

Prior to 1 January 2010, for all leases of land ard buildings, if title is not expected 1o
pass to the lessee by the end of the lease term, the lessee normally does not receive
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental lo ownership, Hence, all leasehold
land heid for own Lize was classified by the Group and the Cempany as operating
iease and where necessary, the minimum lease payments or the up-front payments
made were allocaled between the land and the buildings elements in proporion 1o the
relative fair values for leasehald interasts in the land element and bulldings elemant
of the lzase at the inceplion of the lease. The up-front payment represenied prepaid
lease payments and were amoriised on a siraighi-line basis over the legse term.

Annual Repoert 2010 42



ORNAPAPER BERHAD :issasw,

rarad ki Makagsiz)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d} Amendments to FRS 117 Leases (continued)

The amendments to FRS 117 Leasas clarify thal leases of land and buildings are
claseified as aperaling or finance leases in the same way as leases of olher asseals.
They also clarify that the present value of the rasidual value of the proparty in a leasa
with 2 term of several decades would be negliginle and accounting for the land
element as a finance |ease in such circumsiances would be consistent with the
aconamic position of the lesses. Hence, the adaption of the amendments to FRS 117
has resulted 1n certain unexpired land leases 1o be reclassified as finance leases. The
Group have applied this change in accounling palicy refrospectively and certain
comparalives have been rastated.

The following are effects to lhe statements of financial position arising from the above
change in accounting policy:

31.12.2010 31.12.2008 1.1.2009
RM'D00 RM™000 RM'000
Incraaseldecreasa) In:
Properly, plant and equipment 10,241 10.374 10,508
Land use rights (10,241) (10.374) {10,208)

The comparatives have bean restated as disclosed in Nole 38,

23  Standards issued but not yet effective

The Graup and the has not adopted the following standards and Intarpretations that have
been issusd but not yal effective:

Effective
Description date +
* FRS 1 First-time Adaplion of Financal Reporting Standards 1 July 2010
. FES 3 Business Combinations {Revisad) 1 July 2010
. FRS 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial 1 July 2010
Statements (Revised)
. Amendments lo FRS 2 Share-based Payment 1 July 2010
«  Amendments o FRS & Non-current Assets Held for Sale 1 July 2010
and Discontinued Qperations
«  Amendments o FRS 138 Intangible Assets 1 July 2070
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23

Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

Description

+

Amandments le IC Interpretation 9 Reassessment of
Embedded Derivatives

IC Interpretation 12 Servica Concessian Arrangemenis
IC Interpretation 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation

IC Interpretalion 17 Distribulions of Mon-cash Assels lo Owners

Amendments to FRS 132: Classification of Rights 1ssues

Ameandments ta FRS 1: Limited Exemption from Comparative

FRS 7 Dizclosures for Firsttime Adoplers

Amendments lo FRS 1: Addilional Exemplions for
Firsl-time Adopters

Amendments to FRS 2: Group Cash-seftled Share-basead
FPayment Transactions

Amendments lo FRS 7! Impraving Disclosures abouwl
Financial Instruments

Improvemeants to FRS issued in 2010

IC Interpretation 4 Determining Whether an Arangemenl
contains a Lease

I Interpratation 18 Transter of Assets from Gustomers
1T Interpretation 19 Extinguizhing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instrurments

Amandments o |C Interpretation 14 Prepayments of a
Minimum Funding Reguirement

TR i - 4: Shariah Compliant Sale Contracts

FRS 124 Related Party Disclosures (Revised)

IC Interpretalion 15 Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate

For acecunting pariods beginning on or aftar

Effactive
data +

1 July 2010

1 July 2010
1 July 2010

1 July 2010

1 March 2010

| January 2011
T January 2011
1 January 2071
1 danuary 2011
1 Jdanuary 2011

1 January 2019
1 January 2011
1 July 2011

1 July 2011
1 January 2011

1 January 2012
1 January 2012

Excapt for the changes in accounting policiss ariging from the adopiion of the ravised FRS
3 and the amandments to FRE 127 as well a8 the naw disclasuras raquired undar the
Amendments to FRS 7, the directors expect that the adoption of the ather standards and
Inerpratalions above will have no material impact on tha financial statemeants in the period
of initial application. The nature of the impending changes in accaunting policy on adoption
of the revised FRS 3 and the amendmants to FRS 127 are dascribed below,
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2, Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Standards issued but not yet effective {continued)

Ravisad FRS 3 Business Combinations and Amendments to FRS 127
Consolidated and Saparate Financial Slatements

The revised standards are effective for annual periods beginning on ar after 1 July 2010
The revised FRS 3 introduces a number of changes in the accounting for business
combinations agcurring after 1 July 201{. These changes will impact the amount of
goadwill recognised, the reported results in the parod that an acquisition oocurs, and
fulure reporled results. The Amendments to FRS 127 reguire thal a change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary (withaut loss of control) is accounted for as an equity
transaction. Therefore, such transactions will no longer give rise to goodwill, nor will they
give rise o a gain or loss. Furthermare, lhe amended standard changes the accounting for
Inases Incurred by the subsidiary as well as the loss of contral of & subsidiary. Other
consequential amendments have been made lo FRS 107 Stalement of Cash Flows, FRS
112 Income Texes, FRS 121 The Effects of Changes in Fareign Exchange Rates, FRS
128 Investments in Associates and FRS 131 Interests in Joint Vantures. The changes from
ravised FRS 3 and Amendments to FRS 127 will affect fulure aoguisilions or less of contral
and ransactions with minority interests. The standards may be early adopted. However,
lhe Group does not intend o sarly adopt.

24  3ubsidiaries and basis of consolidation

The consalidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries as al the reporting date. The financial stalements of lhe subsidiaries
uzed in lhe preparation of the consolidated financial staternents are prepared for the same
raporting date as lhe Company. Consistent accounting policies are applied to ke
lransactions and avants in similar sircumstances

All inira-group bakances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulling
from imtra-group transactions are eliminated in full

Acquisitions of subsidiarles are aceaunted far by applying the purchase mathed,
|dantifiable assets acguired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured [nitially at thair falr values at the acquisition date. Adjustments
to those fair values relating to previously hald interests are treated as a revaluation and
recognised in other comprehansive incomea.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

24

2.5

26

Subsidiaries and basis of consolidation (continuesd)

The cosl of a business combination iz measured as the aggregate of the falr values, at the
date af exchange, of the assels given. llabllities incurred or assumed, and equily
nstruments issued, plus any cosls directly aitribulable to he business combination. Any
excass of the cost of business combinatian over the Group’s share in the net fair value of
the acquired subsidiary's identifiable assels, liabilities and contingent liabilities is recorded
&3 goodwill en the statement of inancial pesition. The accountng policy for goodwill is sel
out in Nete 2.8, Any excess of the Group's share in the nat fair value of the acqguired
subsidiary's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of business
combinaticn Is recognised as Inceme In profit or loss on the date of acquisition. When Lhe
Group acquires a business, embadded derivatives separaled from the host contracl by the
acquires are reassessed on acguisition unless the business combination resulls in a
change in the terms of the confract that significanily modifies the cash flows that wauld
otherwise be required under the conlract.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtains contrel, and continuwe to be consolidatad unlil the date that such contrel
cRases.

Transactions with minority interests

Minority interests represant the portion of profit or loss and net assels in subsidiaries not
held by the Gmup and are presentad separately in profit or loss of the Group and within
equity in the consolidatad statements of inancial position, separately from parent
gharsholders’ equity. Transactions with minorily interesls are accounted lor using lhe enlity
concept method, whareby, transachons with minority interests are accounted for as
lransaclions with owners, On acquisition of minority interests, the difference between the
considerafion and book value of the share of the nel assets acquired is recognised disaGty
in equity. Gain or loss on dispasal to minorty interests is recognised directly in equity.

Fareign currency

{a) Functional and presantation currency
The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured in
Ringgit Malaysia which is the currency of the primary econaomic environment In which

thie entities operate (*functional currency™). The consolidated financial statemeants are
presented In Ringgit Malaysia (RM). which |s also the Campany's functional currency.
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2, Slgnificant accounting policies (continued)
2.6  Foreign currency {continued)
(b) Foreign currency iransactions

Transactions in foreign cumencias are measuned and are recorded on initial
recognition In Ringgil Malaysia al exchange rates approximating lhose nuling at the
transaction dates. Monetary asgels and |labilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-manetary
iterns denominated in foreign currencies thal are measured at historical cost are
translated using the exchange rates as al the dates of the Initial ransactons.

Exchange differences arising on the sellement of monetary items or en lranslaling
manatary itamns at the reparting date are recagnisad In profit ar loss.

27  Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

All tems of property, plant and equipment are initizlly recorced at cost. The cost of an ltam
of propertly, plant and sguipment |s recognised as an assel I, and only if, iLis probable thal
future economic beneafits associated with the item will fiow o 1he Group end the cast of the
ilem can be measurad reliably.

Subsequant to recognition, property, plant and equipmeant are statad at cost lass
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment lesses, When signiticant paris
of property, plan! and sguipment are regulred to ba raplaced in Intervals, the Group
racognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depraciation,
respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cast is recognised in the
carrying amoaunt of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition driteria are
satisfied. All ather rapair and maintanance costs are recognised in profit orloss as
incurmed.

Depreciation is computed on & straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
essets as follows:

Leasshold land 95 vears
Factory buildings 50 years
Flant and machinary, factory equipment and alecirical installation Sto 20 years
Cither assetls 5to 10 years

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for mpairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying valle may not ba
recoverable,

The residual value, useful life snd depreciation melhod are reviewed at =ach financizl year-
end, and adjusted prospectivaly, if appropriate.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.7

2.8

29

210

Property, plant and equipment and deprecialion {continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from Its use or disposal, Any gain or loss on
derecognition of the asset igincluded in the profit or loss In the year the asset s

derecognisad,
Intangible asset - goadwill

Goodwill s intially measurad at cost. Fallowing inltlal recognition, geodwill [s measured al
cost less accumulated Impairmeant losses

For the purpese of impaimant tasting, goodwill asquirad [s allscated, fram the acquisition
dale, to each of the Group's cash-generating units ("CGU") that are expacied to benefit
from the synemies of the combination.

The CGU to which gaadwill has bean allocated is tested for impaimant annually and
whenever there is an Indication that the CGU may be impaired, by comparing tha carrying
amount of the CGU, including the allocated goodwill, with the recoverable amount of the
CGU. Where the recoverabla amount of the CGLU is Irss than the carrying amounl, an
impairment loss is recagnised in the profil or loss. Impairment losses racognised for
goadwill are not reversed in subsaquent periods

Where goocwill farms part of a CGL and part of the operalion within that CGU Is disposed
of, the goodwill associated wilh the operalion disposed of is included in the camying
amounl of the operation whan dalsrmining the gain or loss on disposal of the cparation.
Goodwill disposed of in this cireumstance |s measured based an the relstiva fair values of
the operations disposed of and the portion of the CGU.

Land use rights

Land use righls are initially measured al cogl, Following initial recognition, land use rights
ere measured 2t cosl less accumulated amortisation and accumilated Impeirment losses.
The land use rights are amorised over their lease terms.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses al sach reporling dale whether lhere is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. I any such indication exists. or when an annual impairmmant assessment
for an asset is required, the Group makas an estimate of the asset’s recovarabla amount.

An assel's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sall and

ils value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assels are grouped at he
lowast lavels for which there ara saparataly Identifiable cash flows ("CGU").
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2, Significant accounting policies {continuad)
2.10 Impairment of non-financlal assets (continued)

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash fiows expected to be generated by the
assat are discountsd 1o their present valle using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assassments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the assat.
Where (he carrying amount of an asset axceeds |Is racoverable amount, the asset =
written down lo its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respact of a CGU
ar groups of CGUs are allacated first to reduce the carmying amaount of any goodwill
allocated to those units or groups of units and then, o reduce the carrying amount of the
other assats In tha unit or groups of units on a pra-rata basis.

Impairmeant losses are recognised in profit or loss,

An assessment is made al each reporting date as to whether there s any Indication that
praviously recegnised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. A
praviously recognised Impairment loss is revarsad only if thare has been a thange in the
estimates used 1o determing the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amaount of the asselis increased [o ils
recavarable amount, That increase cannot exceed tha camying amount that would have
been determined., net af depreciatian, had no impairmenl loss been recognised prewously.
Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss. Impaiment loss on goodwill is nol reversed in
a subsequent peran

211 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity owver which the Graup has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies so as to abtain benafits fram its activitias.

In the Company's separate financial slatemenis, investments In subsidianes are accounled
far at cost less impairment lossas.

212 Financial assets

Financial assels are recognised in the statements of financial pogition when, and only
whan, he Group and the Company become a party 1o the contractual pravisions of the
financial inslrumenl,

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measurad at fair value, plus, in the
casa of inanclal assets not at fair value through profit ar loss, dirsctly attributable
transaclion costs,

The Group and the Company determine the classification of their financial assets at initial

recagnilion, and the catagoeras inchude financial assats at fair valua through profit ar loss.
inans and receivables, held-tao-maturity investmeants and avallable-for-zale financial assets.
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2. Significant eccounting policies [continued)

212 Financial assets (continued)

(a)

(B)

Financial assets ai fair value through profit or loss

Financial assels are classified as financial assels at fair value through profit or 10ss i
they are held for trading or are designated as such upon initial recognition, Financial
assels held for lrading are derivatives (including separsted embedded derivatives) or
financial essets acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term

Subsequent 1o initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are measured al fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognised In profit or loss. Net gains or nel lassas on financial assets at falr value
through prafit or loss do nel include exchange differences, Interest and dividend
income, Exchange differancas, Intarast and dividend income on financial assats at
fair valua through profit or loss are recognisad separately In profit or loss as part of
other losses or other income,

Financial assats at fair value through profit or loss could be presented as current or
nor-current. Financial assets that is held primarily for rading purposes are presanted
as ourranl whareas firancial assets that Iz nat hald primarlly for trading purposes ara
prasanted as currenl or nan-current based on the settlement date.

The Group has designated iis investment in quated securities disclosed as non-
current assets, which are nol held for trading but for leng term purpeses, as financial
aszals al fair value Wrough profil or |oss,

Loans and recelvables

Financial assels with Tixed or determinable F'E}'TTIBHE that ere nol guoted in an active
market are dassified as loans and receivables.

Subsequent Lo initial recognition, loans and recsivables are measurad at amortised
wosl using the effective Inlsrest method. Gains and losses are recognisad In profit or
iozs whan the loans and recelvables are derecognised or impained, and through the
amartisation process.

Loans and receivables are classified as currant assets, exeapt for ihose having
maturity dates later than 12 months afier the reporting date which are classified as
non-currant.
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212 Financial assets (continued)
(¢} Held-to-maturity investments

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified
as held-to-maturity when the Group has the positive (ntention and ability to hold the
invesiment lo maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-malurity investments are measured at
amartised cost using the affective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised
in profil or loss when the held-to-maturity investments are derecognised or impaired,
and through the amortisation procass.

Held-to-maturity investments are classified as non-current assels, except for those
having maturity within 12 months aftar the raporting date which ara classified as
ourrert

Thara were no financial assets categonsed as hald-to-matunty investments dunng the
reporiing period,

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-far-sale financial assets are those that ars deslgnated as avallable for sale
or are not classified in any of the three preceding calegonies.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair valus,
Any gains or losses from ohanges in fair value of the financlal assel are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except that impaiment losses, forslgn exchange gains
and |osses an monetary instruments and interest caiculated using the effective
interest method are recognized in profit or loss. The cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised In olher comprenensive income s reclassified from equity to
profil or loss as a reclassification adjustment when the financial assel is
derecognized. Interest income caloulabed using the effective Interest method is
recognised in profit or lpss. Dividends an an available-for-sale eguity insirument are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group and lhe Company’s fight 1o receive
peyment is established

Investments In equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measurad are
measurad &l cosl less imparment loss,
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2. Significant accounting policies {(continued)

212

213

Financial assets [continued)
{d) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Avallable-for-sale financial assels are classified as non-current assets unless lhey are
expetied (o be realised wilhin 12 monthe afler the reporting data.

Investmerits in unquated securities, which ane held for long term purposes and
disclosad as non-curent assels, are categorised as availablefor-sale investments.

A financidl asset is derecognisad where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the
assat has axpired On derecognition of a financial assat inits enlirety, the difference
batween the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in ather comprehensive Income s

recoqnisad in profit ar (oss.

Heagularway purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financia| assels that require
delivery of assels within the peried generally established by regulation or convantion in the
marketplace concerned. All regular way purchasas and sales of financial assets are
recognised or derecogniserd on the trade date i.e., the date that the Group and the
Company commil to purchase or sell the assal.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group and tha Company assess at each reporting date whelher there s any objective
ayidence that a financial asset is impaired,

{a) Trade and other receivables and other financial asseta carried at
amortised cost

To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financia!
assets has been incurred, the Group and the Campany censider fagtars such as the
probability of insolvency ar significant financizl difficulties of the debtor and defaull or
significant delay in paymanls, For certain categories of financial assels, such as trade
receivables, assets thal are assessed nol to be impaired individually are
subsaquently assessed for impairment on a collective basis based on similar risk
characteristics. Objective evidence af impairment fora pordiolo of receivables could
include the Group and the Company's past experience of collecting payments, an
incraase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
pencd and obsarvable changes In national or logal economis cendilions that correlate
with defaull on ecalvables.
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2.13  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a) Trade and other receivables and oiher financial aszets carried at
amortised cost [continuad)

It anmy such evidence exists, the amaunt of impairment loss Is measured as the
difference belween the assel's camying amounl and the present value ol estimaled
future cash Nows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.
The impairment lass is recognised in prefil or loss.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss direcily
for all financial assets with the exception of rade receivanles, whara the carrying
amagunt is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a rade receivable
hecomes uncollactinle, it Is writtan off against the allowance account,

If in @ subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can ba ralated abjectivaly 1o an event ccourring after tha imparmant was
recognised, Ihe previously recegnised Impairment [oss is reversed to the axtent that
lhie carrying amournt of the asset does not excesd |ls amorfised cost ai the revarsal
date. The amount of ravarsal is recognised in profit or loss.

(b] Unguoted equity securities carried at cost

If there is objective evidence (such as significant adverse changes in the business
anviranment where lhe isguer pparates, probability of insclvency or significant
financial difficulties of the lssuer) that an impairment lass an financial assets carfed
at cost has been incumed, the amount of the loss is measured as the differance
betwean the ssset’'s carrying amounl and the present value of estimated fulure cash
flows discounted al the current market rate of relurn for a similar financial assel. Such
impairmant losses are nol reversad in subzegquent periods.

{c) Available-for-sale financial assels

Bignificant or prolonged degline in fair value below cost, significant financial
difficulties of the issuer or obligor, and the disappearance af an aclive frading market
are considerations lo defermine whather thers is objective evidence thal investrnent
securities classified as avallable-for-sate financial assets are impaired.

IF an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount camprising the
differenca betwsan its cosl (net of any principal payment and amaortisation) and Its
surrent fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in prafit or loss, is
translerred from equity to profit or |oss.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

213

2.14

215

216

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
{c) Avwallable-far-sale financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses on avallable-for-sale equily invesiments are not reversed in profit
ar loss m the subseguent penods. Increase In Tair value, I any, subsequent to
impairmenl logs is recognised in other comprehensive incama. For available-for-sale
debt investments, impaimment losses are subsequently reversed In profil or loss if an
increase in the fair value of the investmeant can be abjectively related to an event
accurring after the recognition of the impaiment lose in profil or loss.

Cesah and cash sqguivalants

Cash and cagh sguivalents compnse ¢ash al bank and on hand, demand deposgits, and
shord-term, highly liquid investmeants thal are readily convertible to known amount of cash
and which ara subject to an insignificant risk of changes in vailue. These also include bank
overdrafls that form an integral part of the Group's cagh management.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incumed In
bringing the inventories Lo their present location and condition are accounted for as
foill ovs:

- Raw materials: purchaze cosls on a weighted average basis

- Finished goods and wark-in-progress: casts of direct materials and labour and a
praperion af manufacturing overheads based on narmal ocperating capacity. These
cosls ara assigned on 8 weightad sverage basis,

Nal raallzable valua is the astimated selling prica in the ardinary course of business less
estimated costs of completion and the 2stimated costs necessary to make lhe sale.

Provisions

Fravisions ara recognised whean the Group hes a presant abligation (legal ar cansiructive)
as a resull of a past evenl, It is probable that an cutflow of econamic resources will be
raguirad ta sattle the abligatian and the amount of the akligation can ba sstimated reliably.

Provisions ara reviewad at each reporting date and adjustad to reflact the currert best
estimate. It 1 15 no longer probable that an cuttiow of economis resourcas will be required
lo settle the abligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of lhe time value of monay Is
material, pravisions gre discountad using 8 curran! pre lax rale thal refllects, whera
Bppropriate, the risks spedific to the liability. When discounting is used, the Incréasea in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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2. Significant accounting policies {continued)
2.17 Financial liabilities

Finansial llabllities are classfied actording to the substance of the contractual
arangements entered into and the definilions of a financial liability,

Financial liabilities, within the scope of FRS 139, are reccgmised In the statement of
financial posilicn when, and only when, lhe Group and the Company become a parly o the
contractual provisians of the financial Instrument. Financial liabilities are classified as either
financial liabilities &t fair value through profit or loss or other financial liabilities.

{a) Financial liabilities al fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabillties at fair value through profit or 1oss Include financial lisbilities held
for trading and linancial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities hald for rading include derivatives entered into by the Group and
tha Campany thal do not mest the hedge accounting criteria.  Derivative liabllites are
inftially measursd at fair value and subsaquently stated at falr valua, with any
resultant gains er losses recagnised in profit or loss. Mel gaine or losses an
derivatives Include exchange differances.

There were no linancial liabilities at fair value through profil or 1oss during the
reporting period.

(b} Other financial liabllities

The Group and the Company's other tinancial liahilites include trade payabies, ather
payables and loans and bomowings,

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair valua plus directly attributable
transaction costs and subsequently measursd at amortised cost using the affactive
interest methaod.

Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subsequently measured at amaortised cost Using the effactive interast
meathod. Borowings are classified as current liabllities unlass the group has an
unconditional right to defer setiement of the liabillty for at least 12 monlhs after the
reporting date.

For other financiel liabilities, gains and losses are recognised in profil or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amartisation process,
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Notes To The Financial Statements
(For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2010)

2. Siagnificant accounting policies [continued)

217

2.18

2.19

Financial liabilities (continusd)

A financial liabllity Is derecognised whan the obligatian under the liahllity is extinguishad
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially diffarent tarms, or the tarms of an exizting labilily sre substantially modiled,
such an exchange ar modification is treated as a derscognition of the original liakility and
the recognilion of a naw liability, and the difference in the respeclive carrying amounts 15
recagnised r prafit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A linancial guarantee conlract is a cantract thatl reguires the issusr 1o make specified
paymants to raimburse the holdar for a loss it Incurs because a spacified debior fails to
make pavment when dus.

Financial guarantee contracls are recognised inilially as a lability at fair value. net of
fransaction costs Subsaquent o Inltial recognition, financial guarantes cantracts are
recognised as income in profit or ioss over the perod of the guarantes. If the debtor fails to
make payment relating to financial guarantes contract when it is due and the Group, as the
Issuar, is raquired to reimburse the helder for the associated loss, the liability Is measured
at the higher of the best estimate of the expendiure required to settle the present
abligation at the reporting date and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amaortisation.

As disclosed in Nete 2.2(c), no values are placed on corparate guarantess provided by the
Caompany 1o secure Dank loang and other banking facilities granled o s subsidianes
where such loans and banking facilities are fully collateralized by fixed and floating
charges over the property, plant and equipment and other assets of the subsidiaries and
whera [he directors regard (he value of the credit enhancemeant provided by the corporate
guarantees as minimal.

Borrowing costs

Bomowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifving asset if thay are diractly
anributable to the acquisition, construction or praduction of that asset. Capitalization of
borrawing cosie commences when the activities to prepare Ihe asset for its intended use or
sala are In prograss and the expandituras and borraowing costs ars incurmad, Borrawing
cosis are capitalised until the assets are substantially completed for their intended use or
sale.

All ather borrewing costs are recognisaed In profit ar lass in the pariod thay ara incurred,
Borrowing costs consist of interest and ather costs that the Group and the Company

ingurred in connection with the bomrowing of funds

Annual Repof 2010 &7



ORNAPAPER BERHAD 528080

ratad In Matayata)

F
"

Notes To The Financial Statements
(For The Financial Year Ended 2| December 2010)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits - defined contribution plans

The Group makes contributions o the Employee Provident Fund in Malaysia, a defined
conirbution pension scheme. Centributions to defined cantribution pension schemes are
recognised as an expense in the penod in which the related service is performed,

221 Leases
(a) As lesses

Finance leases, which fransfer lo the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
insidental ta ownearship of the leassd itam, are capitalised at the inceplian of the lease
at the fair valus aof the leased asset or, if lower, at the present valug of the minimum
lease paymenis. Any initial direct costs are also added to the amount capitalised.
Lease paymeants are appartionad batwaen the finance charges and reduction of tha
lease liability s0 as to achieve a constant rate of interest on Ihe remaining balance of
Ihe lability. Finance charges ars charged to profit or loss, Conlingant rants, if any, ars
chargped as expenses in the periods in'which they are Incurred.

Leased assets are depreciatad over the estimated useful life of the assel. However, if
lhere is no reasonable cerlainty thal the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shortar of the estimatad useful life and
the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an axpense in profil or loss on a straight-
lima basls over the lsass tarm, The aggregate banefit of incentivas providad by the
lessar Is recognised as 2 reduction of rantal expense aver the lease term an a
straight-line basis.

(b) As lessor

Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownarship
of the assel are clazsified as oparating leaszes. (nitial direct cosls mourred in
negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the l=ased assel
and recognised over the lease term an the same bases as rental income. The
accounling policy for rantal income |5 set oul in Note 2.22(e).
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(For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2010)

2. Significant accounting policles (continued)

2.22 Revanuea

223

Revenue is rEGﬂgl“HS&d o the extent thal il is probable hat the aconomic benalits will Tlow
to the Group and tha revanua can ba reliably measured, Revanua is measured at the fair
value of consideration received or receivabla.

{a)

(b)

(e)

(d}

(e)

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods Is recogmsed upon the ransfer of significant risk and
rewards of ownership of the goods 1o the customer. Revenus is not recognised o the
extent where thare are significant uncertainties regarding recavary of the
consideration due, associaled cosls or ihe possible relurn of goods.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the sflective interest method,

Management fees

Management lees are recognised when services are rendered,

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recagnised when the Group's fAght lo receive peymenl is
established.

Rental income

Renlal income is accounled far on a siralahl-line basis over lhe lease terms, The
aggragate costs of incertives provided to lessess are recognisad as a reduction of
rantal income over the lease term on a straightline basis.

Income taxes

{a)

Currant tax

Currant tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to ba
recovared from or paid lo the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
computa tha amaunt ara thasa that are enacted or substantivaly anacted by tha
reparting data.

Gurrant taxas ara recognised in profit or lnzs excepl to the extant that the tax relates
to ems recognisad outside profit or lozs, either in other comprehansive Income or
diractly in squlty.

Annual Reper 2010 &9
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2. Significant accounting pelicies [continued)
2.23 Income taxes [continued)

ib) Deferrad tax

Deferred tax iz provided using the liabllity melhod on lemporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilitles and their camying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred {ax liabilities are recognized far all temporary differences, excepl,

- whara the deferred tax liability arises fram the initial recognition of goodwill or of
an assei ar liability in a transaction that is not 2 businass combination and, at the
tirme of Ihe lransaclion, sffacts neithar the accounting profit nor laxable prefit ar
lo=s; and

- inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and il is probable thal the
temporary differances will nol reverse in the foreseeable future

Defered tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry
farward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, 1o the extenl thal it Is prabable
that taxable profit will he availahle against which the deductinle tempaorary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused lax losses can be
utllisad axcapt:

F where the defermed tax asset relafing lo the deductible temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of an assel or liability in a transaction that is not
g business combinalion and, al the tlime of the lransaction, affects neither the
accounting prafit nor taxable profit or loss, and

= inrespect of deduclible lemporary differences assacialed with investimentls in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, defarred tax assels are
recognised anly io the extent thal il is probable |hat the temporary difierances
will reverge In the foreseeable future and laxable profil will be available against
which the tamparary gifferences can be utllised.

The carrying amount of deferred {ax assets is reviewed at each repariing date and
reduced {o the extenl that il Is no longer probable thal sufficient taxable profit will be
avallable o allow all or part of lhe deferred lax assel lo be ulllised. Unrecognlzed
deferretd tax assels are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
axtant (hat it has become probable that future taxable profil will allow the dalemad tax
assets o be ulllised.
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(For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2010}

2. Significant accouniing pelicies [continued)

223 Income taxes (continued) (continued)

(b)

(c})

Deferred tax (continued)

Defamed iax asseis and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected lo
apply o the year when the assel is realised or lhe liability is setfled, based on tax
ratas and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively anacted af the reporting
date.

Defarred 1ax relaiing 1o ilems recognised ouiside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss. Defarred tax lems are recognised In correlation to the underlying
transaclion sither in other comprehensiva income or dirsclly in eguily snd defarred
tax arising fram a business combination is adjusted aganst geadwill on acquisitlan.

Deferred lax assels and deferrad tax liabililies are offsel, il a legally enforceatle right
exisis to set off current tax assets against curent tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
refate lo the same taxable enlity and the same taxation authority.

Sales tax

Revenues, expenses and assels are recognised net of the amount of sales tax
excepl

- \Where the sales tax incurred in a purchase of assets or services [s nat
fecovarable from lhe laxation adthority, in which case lhe sales lax is recognised
a5 part of the cost of acquisition of the assel or as part of the expanse item as
applicable; and

- Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable lo, the taxation authority is
mcluded as parl of recebvablas or payables in the statemants of financial pasition.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.24 Share capital and share Issuance axpenses

Anequily instrument iz any contract that evidences & residual intsresl in the azsets of Lhe
Group and the Company after deducting all of iz liabilities. Ordinary shares arg equity
instruments.

Ordinary ghares ars recorded al lhe proceeds received, net of directly altributable
ncremental transaction costs. Ordinary shares are classified as eguity. Dividends an
ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared.

223 Comtingencles

A contingant liability ar asset |s a possible obligation or assat that arisas from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed anly by the occurrence or non-ocoumence of
uncerlain fulure event(s) nal wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingant liahllities and assels ara not recagnised in the statemeants of financial position
of the Graup.

3. Significant accounting Judgmeants and estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to meke judgments,
estimates and assumplions that affect lhe reporled amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
lighilities, and lhe disciosure of cordingent liabilities al the reporting dete. However, uncertainty
about these assumplions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a materal
adjustment to lhe camrying amuunt of the assel or liability affected in the fulure.

31  Judgments made In applying accounting palicles

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has not made any
crilical judgments, aparl from those involving estimalions, which could have a significant
effact on the amounts racognizsed In the financlal statements.

3.2 Keysources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the fulure and other key sources of eslimation
unceralnty at Iha raoorting date that have a slgnificant risk of causing a malerial
adjustmant to the carrying amounts of 3ssets and liakilities within the next financial year
gra discussed balow.
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(For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2010)

3. Significant accounting judgments and estimates (conlinued)

3.2  HKey zources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(a)

(i)

o)

Useful lives of plant and machinery

The cosl of plant and equipment for the manufaciure of cormugated boards and carton
boxes |2 depreciated on a slraight-line basis aver the assets’ estimated sconomin
useful [lves. Management estimates the useful lives of these plant and equipmeant ta
be within 5 to 20 years. These are common life expaclancies applied in the
corrugated hoards and carton boxes Industry. Changes In the expected level of usage
and technological developmentis could impact lhe econamic useful lives and the
residual valuss of theses assals, tharefore, [Ulure depreciation charges could be
revised. The carmying amount of the Group's plant and equipment at the reporting
dale is disclosed in Nota 13, A 5% difference in the expecied useful lives of these
assets from managemeant s estimates would result in approximataly 1% (2008: 1.5%)
variance in the Group's prafit for the year.

Impairment of goodwill

Gaadwilll are tested annually for impairment and at other imes when such indicators
exist. This requires an eslimation of the value in use of the CGU's 1o which goodwill is
allncatad.

When value In use caleulation are undertaken, management must estimata the
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present values of lhosa cashflows.
Further datails of tha carrying valua, the key assumptions applied 0 the Impairment
azsessment of gooowill and sensitivity analysis {o changes in the assumptions are
givan in MNate 16.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Tha Graup and tha Company assesses at each reporting date whethar there is any
objeclive evidence lhat a inancial assel is impaired. To getermine whether there is
abjective evidence of iImpairment, the Graup and the Company censidars factors
such as lhe prababilily of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debior
and default or significant delay in payments.

Where there is chjeclive evidence of impaimmant, the amount and uming of fulura
cash flows are estimated based on historical Ioss experience for assets with similar
credit risk charactaristics. The carrying amount of the Group and the Company’s
loans and receivable at the reporting dals |z disclozed in Note 18, If the prezant valus
of estimated future cash flows increases/decreases by 10% fram management's
estimates, lhe Group's allowance for impairment will decreaselincreass by
RMEE5,000
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Sales of goods
Dwidend income fram subsidianes
Management fees from subsidisries

5. Interest income

Interest income from:
Loans and receiiahles

o, DOther incoma

Commission received

Insurance claims

Net gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipmeant

Hental from operaling isases
Reversal of allowance for impairment
lass an trade receivablas

Others

B2  Annual Report 2010

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
RM'000 RIM00D0 RM'000 RM"00D
216,517 156,461 - -
- - 224 1,350
- - 227 210
216,617 156.461 451 1,560
Group Company
2010 2008 2010 2009
RM000 RM'000 RM'D00 RM'0OD
11 B - a
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
RM 00D RM"000 RM'000 RM'000
B2 75 - -
48 88 - -
a9 273 - -
195 202 - -
276 11 - -
252 283 - 1
852 931 - 1
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Notes To The Financial Statements.

(For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2010}

Finance costs
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Bnnoc RMOOD RMODO Faioo
Interest expense an.

- Bank loans and cverdrafts 2,795 2878 - -
Chllgatians under finance leases 341 366 - -
3136 3,044

Profit before lax
The following amounts have been chargedf(credited) in arriving at profit befora tax:

Group Company
2010 2008 2010 20048
RM'O00 RAK'O00 RM'OOO BMO00
Luditors' remunaration

Statutory audit (current year) 123 118 kY 3o
- Statulory audit (prior yvaar) - {6) - (&)
- Othar gervices - 24 . 7
Bad debls wntten off B0 19 - -
Carmiage inwards and outwards 10,511 B 269 - -
Depraciation and amartisation:
- Properly, plant and equipmenl
(Note 13) 6,884 B.492 - -
- Land use right (Note 14 111 111 .
Employes benefits sxpanss (Nate 9) 17,509 18,211 B6 o8
Falr value [ogs on investmeant securilies
designated at fair value through profit or 1 - - -
loas
Forsign exchangs gains [(FE) (17) - -
Impairmant logs on inancizl 2ssels
- Trade receivables [Note 19(z)] 410 748 - -
- Other receivables [Nota 19{b)] 8 - - -
MNon-exacutive directors' ramuneration
{Mole 10) 154 157 106 o4
Cperating lease:
- Minimum leasa paymants an
land and bulldings 7aa 300 - -
- Mirimum lease payments an
- plant and eguiprment - a0 - -
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9. Employee benefits expense

Group Company
210 2009 2010 2009
RM 000 RM'DOO RM'000 RM'000
\Wages and salaries 15,128 13,765 84 86
Contributions to deflined contribulion
plans 1,162 1.062 2 2
Social security confributionz 145 126
Other banefits 1,074 1,278 - -
17,509 16,231 i) 88

Included In employes benefits expanse of the Group and the Company are executive directors’
remuneration amounting to RM1,801,000 and RM&8.,000 (2009 RM1,666,000 and RM2B,000)
raspachvaly,

10. Direclors' remuneration
Group Company
2010 2008 2010 2008
RM'GDO RM'000 RMC00 RM'000
Executive directors
Diraclors of the Company:

- Fees 120 140 48 83
-  Salaries and other emoluments 407 713 a6 a3
- Defined contribulion plans 42 T8 2 2
569 231 86 g8
Cther direclors of subsidiaries:
Salaries and ather emoluments 870 654 - -
- [Defined contribullan plans B2 a1 - -
1,032 Fies] - -
Taotal executive direclars’ remuneration
(excluding benedits-in-kind) 1,601 1,666 86 aB
Estimated monay valus of
banefits-in-kind 20 13 - -
Total executive directors’ remuneration
(including banafits-in-kind) 1,621 1,679 BE 93

86 Annual Report 2010



ORNAPAPER BERHAD (srasesw) '

{Inearparamad in Malaysis)

. . d
Notes To The Financial Statements
(For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2010)

10. Dirsctors' ramuneration (continued)
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2008
RM'D0D RM'DO0 RM'000 RM'DOO
Nan-exacutiva directors
Directors of the Company:

- Fzes 144 147 Lt 13 84

- Other emoluments 10 10 10 10
154 167 106 04

Total directors' remuneration 1,775 1,836 192 192

The number of directors of the Company wheo held office during the financial vear, whose total
annual remuneration received from the Group that fell within the Tollowing bands is analysed

below:
2010 2009
Executive directors
Below RME0,000 - i
FMI1E0,0017 to RM200,000 2 1
RMZ50,001 to RM300 000 1 -
RM300,0017 to RM350,000 1 .
Above RMESD,000 - i
MNon-executive directors
Above RMS0,000 3 3
11  Income lax expense
Major componants of Income tax expense
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2008

RM 000 RM'000 RM'000 RM 000
Statemnent of comprehensive Income
Currenl income tax

- Malaysian income tax 1,552 1,309 - -
- Underprovision in priar years 6 5 7 il
1,558 1,314 7 3
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11 Income tax expenge (continued)

Defarrad incame 1ax (Note 25);

Onginalion and reversal of
temporary differences

Effact of reduction in tax rate
Linderprovisicn In pAor years

Income tax expense recognised
ir profit or loss

Reconciliation between lax expense and accounting profit

Profit before tax

Taxation at 26% (2009; 25%)
Adjustments on tax effect of:

Raduction in lex ratas

Non-deduciible expenses

Non-laxable ncomes

Expenses qualifying for

double daduction

Ltilisation of re<imvastiment allowances

Deferred tax asset nol recognised
unabsarbed capltal allowancas
Underprovisian of current tax

I prior years

Underprovision of deferred lax

Ir prior years

Tax expense for the vear

88 Annual Report 2010

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
RMW0O00 RM'000 RM'000 RMO00
290 (138) -
: (87) E
353 263 - -
£43 38 - -
2,201 1.362 i 5
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
8,859 8,158 DE 1,218
1,715 1,639 24 04
- (@a1) ; -
277 178 3 -
(57) (19 (571 (304)
- (4) . -
{456) (740) - -
373 220 28
g 5 v 3
353 263 -
2.201 1,352 7 5
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Income tax expense (continued)

The amounts ralating to continuing operations available for carried forward o offset against
future taxable Income are as follows:

Group Company
31422M0 31.12.2009 31.42.2010 31.12.2009
RM'004 RM'00D RM'0D0 RM'000

Unutilised tax losses 2,677 1,830 - -
Unabsorbed capital allowances 2 BB5 1,438 . :
Unabsorbed reinvestment allowances 20,2149 22 2680 = =

25,661 25,628 = =

Earnings per share

Basic earnings par share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year. net of tax,
altributable to owners of lhe parent by lhe weighled average number of ordinary shares
outetanding during the financial year.

Diluted sarnings per share are the same as that of the basic eamings per share as thera are no
dilulive patential ordinary shares oulstanding during the financial year,

Group
2010 2009
Profit for the vear allributable 1o owners of the parent (RM'C00) 4,589 4,605
Weighted average number of ardinary share in issue (D00) 5,251 75,251
Egszic and diluted eamings per share (sen) 6.1 5.1
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13. Property, plant and squipment

Leassehold Factory  Plant and Dther
land buildings machinery assels Tatal
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000  RM'000 RM'000

Group
Cost
Al 1 January 2003:

- Originally reported - 36,116 50,540 D378 136,032

- Effecl of amendment

o FRS 117 Leases 11,768 - - - 11,768

- Reslated 11,763 36,1186 90,540 G378 147,800
Additions - a0 5,514 505 7,109
Disposals - - (ETT) (883) {(1.560)
At 31 December 2009 11,768 36,206 85 377 8,928 153,343
Additions - 1,881 7,023 40 9,724
Disposals - - {Bd2) (a5 (1,798)
Al 31 Decambar 2010 11,768 35,167 102,455 84382 161,275
Accumulated depreciation
Al January 2008;

- Originally reported - 7,807 48 4M 7,258 63,466

- Effact of amendment

o FRS 117 Legsss 1,262 - - - 1,262

- Reslated 1,262 7.807 48 401 7258 B4,728
Charge for the yaar (Mote B) 133 1,076 4 fd3 640 6,492
Risposals - - (576) {715] (1,291}
Al 31 December 2009 1,395 2 BE3 52 463 7,183 59,929
Charge for the yaar (Note 8) 133 1.004 5123 G24 4,884
Disposals - - (219) [813) (1,732)
Al 31 Decamber 2010 1,528 9.887 56,672 5,934 75,081
Carrying amouni
Al January 20049 10,506 28,309 42 139 2,118 83,072
At 31 December 2009 10,373 27,325 43,809 1,815 83,420
Al 31 Decamber 2010 10,240 28,280 45,766 1,388 86,194

(@) Cther assets caomprise motor vehicles, office equipment, furniture, fitings and office
renovation

(b} The factory buildings and certain plart and equipment are pledged to secure hank
bomrnwings as disclosed in Mote 23.
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

[Inzarpararad 15 Mzlaysla)

(e} Property, plant and equipment purchased by the Group during the finencial year wara by

means of |

Cash
Lease financing

2010 2008
RM'000 RM'000
6,806 3,349
2818 3,760
g 724 7,108

() The carrying amaount of property, plant and equipment baing azquired under instalment

payment plans amounts to BM11,018,000 (2009: RM11,911,000)

Land use rights

Cost
At 1 January

- Oriainally reported

- Effect of amendment lo FRS 117 Leases
At 31 December

Accumulated amortisation

ALT January;
- Originally reporied
- Effect of amendment lo FRS 117 Leases
- Restaied

Amortised during the vear

At 31 Decamber

Carrying amount

Group
31.12.2010 31.12.2009  1.1.2009
RM*000 RM'O0D RM'000
(resiated) (restabed)
4,596 16,364 16,384
- (11,768) {11.768)
4,536 45596 4 586
750 1,810 1,688
- (1,262) {1,151]
58 B44 537
1 111 111
g70 759 g48
3728 3,837 3,948
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14. Land use rights {continuad)
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Group
31.12.2010  31.12.2000 1.1.2009
RM'000 RM'000 RM'0OD0
Amount to be amortised:
- Mol latar than ona yaar 111 111 111
- Later than one year but not later than 5 vears 442 442 442
- Later than 5 vears 3,173 3,284 3,395
The above properties are pledged to secure bank horrowings as refarmed o in Note 23
15. Investment in subsidiaries
Company
31.12.2010  31.12.2009
RM'000 RM'O00
Unquoted shares at cost 75,585 75,565

Details of the subsidiarias, all of which were incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows :

Mame of subsidiaries

Omapaper Industry
(M) Sdn. Bhd.

Omapeper Industry

(Batu Pahet) Sdn. Bhd.

Omapaper Industry
(Perak) Sdn. Bhd.

Quantum Rhythm Sdn.
Bho #

Tripack Packaging
(M) Sdn. Bhd. #

Cmapapear Industry
(Johor} Sdn. Bhd. #

Principal activifies

Manufaciuring and sale af
corugated boards and carion
boxes

Manufacluring and sale of
carton boxes

Manufacturing and sale of
carmigated boards and cartan
boxes

Manufacturing and sale of
carton boxes

Manufacturing and sale of
carton boxeas

Manufacluring and sale of
carton boxes

# Mot audited by Emst & Young

J& Annual Report 2010

Proportion of
ownership interest
20140 2009
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% -
100% 100%
80% 80%
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Notes To The Financial Statements
(For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2010}

Investment in subsidiaries [continuad)

Acquisition of subsidiary

On 28 March 2010, the Campany acquired 100% equity interest in Quantum Rhythm Sdn. Bhd,
("QRSE") for & cash consideration of RM1 for each ardinary share or total consideration of RMZ.

Upon the scquigition, QRSB became & subsidiary of the Company. QRSE, an unlisted company
incorporated in Malaysia. is involved in the manufacturing of carton boxas,

Goodwill
impailrment tests for goodwlll

Goodwill arsing from business combinations has been allacated o two individual CGU identified
according to the subsidiaries for impairment testing, the camying amount of which are as follows:

Group
3112.2010 31122009
RM'000 RMO00
Omapaper Industry (Perak) Sdn. Bhd., ("OIP") 1,674 1,674
Omapanar Industry (Johor) Sdn. Bhd, ("O1J7) 58 59
T.633 1,633

The recoverable amaunt of a CGU is detarminad basad on valua-in-use calculations using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management cavering a five-year panod.
The pre-lax discount rate applied to tha cash flow projections and the farecasted growth rates used
to extrapolate cash fiows beyond the five-year periad are as follows:

QiP ou
2010 2009 2010 2009
Growih rate 1% % 1% 1%
Pre-tax discount rate 95 8% a8 8%

The calculations of value in use for the CGUs are maost sansitive to the fallowing assumptions:

Budgeted gross marging - Gross marging are based on average values achieved in the three years
preceding the start of the budget period. These are Increased ocver the budget period for anticipated
gfficiency improvements,

Growth rales - The forecasied growth rales are based on published industry ressarch and do rol
excaed the long-term average growth rate for the Industies relevant to the CGLUs.
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16, Goodwill (continued)

17.

18.

Pre-tax discount rates — Discount rates reflect the current markel agsessment of the risks spedific
to each CGUL This is tha banchmark usad by management to assass aparating performancea and to
evaluate futurs invesimenl propasals. [n delermining appropriate discount rales for each CGU,
regard has been given to the yvisld on a ten-yaar government bond &t the beginning of the budgetad

year.

Marke! share assumptions — These assumptions are important because, as well as using indusiry
clala for growth rates (as noted above), management assesses how the CGU's position, relative to
lls competitors. might change over the budget oerod. Managament expecls the Group's share of
the electronics market Io be stable over the budget period.

Investment sacurities
Group Group
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 RM
Carrying Market Carrying Market
amount value amaunt value
RM 00D RM"000 RM'000 RM"000
Fair valus through profit ar loss *
- Enquity Instruments
(quoted in Malaysia) g 8 18 <]
Available-for-sale financial assets =
- Equity instruments (unquotad) _ 235 - 235 -
Total investmeant securities . 244 254

" PFriorto 1 January 2010, the current investments were carried at cost less accumulated
impaimmenl losses, [T any.

**  These investments confinue 1o be carried at cosl less accumulated impairment lossas, if any.

Inventariss
Group
S1.12.2010 31.12.2009
RM'0G0 RM'000
At cosl

Raw matenals and consumables 21,585 21,130
Work-in-progress 124 148
Finished goods 1,848 1.858
23,655 23134
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19. Trade and other receivables

Group Company
31.12.2010 3112200 31122010 31.12.2009
RM'000 RM'000 RM 000 RM'DO0
Trade receivables
Third parties BGATE 66,836 - -
Allowanca lor impairment {5,557) (5,725) - -
Trade receivables, nel 54,015 51,161 - -
Other receivables
Third parties 4,863 2,946 - -
Subsidiaries - - 10,778 10.718
Sundry peposits 250 168 2 13
5113 3174 10,780 10,731
Allowance for impairment - Third parlies {458) (15 - -
Other recarvables, net 4.6585 3,109 14,780 10,731
Total trade and other recelvables 58.674 B4 270 10,780 10,731
Total trade and olher receivables 58,674 54,270 10,780 10,731
Add: Cash and bank balances (Mala 20) 12,545 13.565 213 280
Tofal loans and receivables 71,218 77,835 10,905 10,9919

(a) Trada receivables

Trade receivables are non-inferest bearing and are generally on 30 o 120 (2008: 30 to 120)
days terms. They are recognized at their original Invalce amounts which represent their fair
values an initial recognition. Overdus interast of 0.50% ta 1.50% (2002: 0.50% 10 1.50%) par
manth is charged on certain amounts exceeding credit terms.

Anelng enalysis of frade receivebles

The ageing analysis of tha Group's trade receivables s as follows:

Group
31122010 31.12.2009
RM 000 RM'000
Meither past due nor impaired 40,164 34,650
1 to 30 days past dus not impaired 3,858 4404
31 to 60 days past dus not impaired 1,268 2186
Mara than 61 days past due nol impalired 2,800 18,908
7,822 26,511
Impaired 11,490 5725
58 578 56,886
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19. Trade and other receivables (continued)

{a) Trade receivables {continued)

Recervables that are neither pasl due nor impaired

Trade and other recelvables that are naither past due nor impaired are craditwarthy debtars
with good paymenl records with the Group.

None of the Group's trade receivables that ara neither past due nar impairad have bean
renagotiated during the financial year.

Recevables that are past due bul nol impaired

Tha Graup has trade receivablas amounting 1o RMT 822,000 (2005 RM26,115,000) that ara
past dua at the reporting date but not impaired. These receivables are active accounts which
the managemen! considars (o be recoverabla.

[ahi re | ir

The Group's trade receivables that are indlvidually impaired at the reparting date and the
movement of the allowance accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:

Group
31.12.2010  31.12.2009
RM'000 RM'000
Trade receivables - nominal amounts 11,490 5.725
Less: Allowancs for impairmenl (5,557 {5,728)
5.833 -

Movement in allowance accounts: Group
31122010 31.12.2009
RM'000 RM 000
At 1 January 5,725 5,185
Effecl of adopling FRS 139 [Note 2.2(c)] 2,880 -
Charge for lhe year (Nale &) 410 T46
Reversal of impairment losses (278) {11)
Viritt=n off against trade dablors [3,162) [188]
4137 December R.&GT ET25

Trade receivables thal are determinad to be individually impaired at the reporting date relate lo
those dabars that are In significant Ainancal difficultes andfor have daefaulted on paymants,
Thesa raceivables are not seoured by any collataral ar eredit anbiancements.
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{For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 20100

19. Trade and other receivables (continued)
{b] Other rocsivables
Subsidiaries
Amaounts due from subsidiarias are unsecured and rapayable on demand.
Oiher recejvabl t are ired

The Graup’s other recaivablas that are Individually impaired at the reporting date and the
mowvament of the allowance accounts used to record the impairmenl are as follows:

31.12.2010 31.12.2009

RM000 RM'000

Other receivables - nominal amounts 1,373 1,757
Less: Allowance far impairment {458 (5)

915 1,752

Movement in allowance accounts:
31.42.2010  31.12.2009

RWM™O00 RM'0DO
Al 1 January B ]
Effect of adopting FRS 138 380 =
Charge for the year (Note &) 7B -
Written off ageinst other debtars (5] -
Al 31 Decambar 458 5

Other receivables that are individually determined o be impalrad at the reporting date ralate to
debiprs that hava defaulted on payments. Thasa raceivables are not secured by any collateral
or credit enhancements.

20. Cash and bank balances

Group Company
3.12.2010 31.12.2009 31.12.2040 31.12.200%
RMODO RM'DOD RM0O00 RMDOO
Cash an hand and at banks 12279 13,308 215 260
Short term deposils with licensed banks 266 259 - -
Zash and bank balances 12 545 13,565 215 260

Short term deposits are made for varying pericds between 1 to 12 manths depending on the
Immediate cash requirements of the Group and of the Company. The deposits gam interest at the
respedtive shor-lerm deposit rates. The weighted average effective interest rate at the balance
sheat dats for the Group was 2.8% (2003; 2.5%) per annum
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Cash and bank balances |[continued)

The deposits with licensed banks are pledged to secure bank guarantee facilities.

For the purposes of the skatement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following

at tha reporting date:

Graup Company
3114220490 31122009 31422010 31.12.2009
RM'000 RMQ00 RM'00O RM'000
Caszh and benk balances 12,545 13,585 215 260
Bank overdrafis (Note 23) {3,086 {5.2158) - -
Cash and cash equivalents D459 8,350 215 260
Qther current ascets
Group Company
31.12.2010 31122009 31122010 31.12.2009
RM'000 RM'000 RA"000 RM000
Daposits lor purchass of
plant and equipmen 1,185 - - -
Deposits far purchase of raw materials GO7 3 z =
Frepayments 1,833 378 i0 -
3,725 3ra 10 -
The above amaunts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
Assets held for sale
As al 31 Decamber 2010, assats hald for sale are as tollows:
31.12.2010 31.12.2009
RM'D0O RM'000
At carmying amaunt
Planl and machinesry 440 -

The Group has presented the above assel as held for sale which was disposed of to third parties

on 21 January 2011.
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23. Borrowings

Group
31122010 31.12.2009
Curremt Maturity RM'00D RM'000
Secured:
Bank overdraflts (Mole 20) On damand 3,088 5,215
Bankars' acceptances 201 43,252 44 503
Trust receipts 2011 4,910 7 08
Term loans 2011 G759 486
Finance lease pavables (Nole 31) 201 1.810 2,615
a3 Biy 598910
Neon-current
Secured:
Term loans 2012 o 2015 2548 2413
Finance lease payables (Note 31) 202 to 2015 3,587 3,726
B.103 5,139
Total borrowings 50,840 66,049

The remaining maturities of the horrowings as at 31 Dacember 2010 are as foliows:

Group
31122010 31.12.2009
RM000 RMODO
On demand or within one year £3.838 59,910
Later than one year and not latar than 2 years 2577 1,044
Later than 2 year and not lsier than £ years 3,525 3450
Later than § years - 745
59,940 65,049

(a) Bark overdrafis

Bank overdrafis are denominated in RM, bear inleras| on an average of 8.42% [(2009:7.66%)
et annuim.

(b} Bankers'acceptance and lrust racaiots

These are used fo finance purchases of the Company denominated in RM end are short i2rm
in nature. The weighted average &ffective interest rate is 3.09% fo 4.275% (2003. 3.99% ta
5.03%) per annum,

(c) Tarm loans

The loans are repayabla over a period of 5 years, The weighted avarage effective interast rate
is 7.5% to 7 65% (2009: 3.99% to 6.88%) per annum,
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23. Borrowings [continued)

{d) Oblinations under finance leases

These obligations are secured by a charge over the leased assets (Mote 132), The average
discount rale implicil In the leases is 3.52% (2009: 5.24%) per annum,

The borrowings are secured by the Group's factory buldings and ceriain cther assels and a
dabenlura covering fixed and Roating charges over all the assels and properlies ag digclosad
in Motes 13. The borrowings are additionally guaranteed by a director af a subsidiarny and

cerlain directors of the Company.

24, Trade and other payables

Group Company
31122010 31122009 31122010 31.12.2009
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Trade payables
Third parties 17 832 15.702 - -
Other payables
Accrued operaling expenses 3.517 4] -
Other payables 4817 5,716 23 50
7,934 2,716 31 50
Tolzl trade and oclher payables 25,866 21418 31 50
Total rade and othar payables 25,866 21,418 a1 50
Add: Borrowings (Note 23) 59,5840 B6,040
Total financial iabilities carried at
amortised cost 85,806 BY 467 31 50

(a} Trades payables

Trade payables are nan-interast bearing and are namally settled on 30 1o 120 (2003: 30 1o

120) days terms.

(B} Other payables

Other payables are non-interest bearing and rommally setted on an average of 6 (20085 : §)

meniths,
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25. Deferred tax liabilities

Group
31122010 31.12.2009
RM™0OD RM'000
Al 1 January 3,113 3075
Effect of FRS13%9 adoption adjustad lo opening retained eamings ({810] -
Recognised in Income statement (Nate 11) 643 38
Al 39 December 2946 3112
Deferred income tax relates to the following:
Recognised
At in profit At 31
January orloss  December
2010
Deferred tax |iabilities:
Properly, plant and eguipment 8,545 132 B ATV
Defaerred tax assets:
Unabsorbed capital allowances (216) (118) (232)
Linabsorbed re-investment allowancas 15,217) 20 {4,397
Others 1 {1.003) (1,002)
(5,432) {239] [5,731)
3,113 (167 2,846
2009
Daferred tax liabilities:
Fraoperty, plant and eguipment 8,287 2508 8,545
Deferred tax assets:
Unabsorbed capital allowances 136 {(352) (216)
Unabsorbed reinvesiment allowances {5,349) 132 (5,217)
Clhers 1 - 1
(5,212} [220] (5,432)
3,075 28 3,113
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Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

The following iterms ware not recognised for deferred tax assels:

Group Company
.42.2010 31122009 31122016 31.12.2009
RM'O00 RM'000 RM"'000 RM'DO0
Lnutilised tax |psses 2,708 1,848 111 -
Linabsorbed capital allowances 1,336 Y s - -
LUnabsorbed reinvestment allowances 2621 1,493 = -
G.745 3,813 111 -
Share capital
Group Compzany
31122010 31122009 31122010  31.12.2009
RM'O0D RM'0D00
Authorised
Shares of RM? each 100.000 100,000 100,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of RM1 2ach 75251 752581 75.251 75251

The holder of ordinary shares are eniilled lo recaive dividends as and whan declarad by the
Company. Al ordinary shares cary one vole par share without restrictions and rank squally with
regard to the Company residual assats.

Share premium

This nen-distributable capital resarve arose frem the jssue of shares at a8 premium in previous
Years.

Retained earnings

With effect from year of assessment 2008, tax on a company's profit will be a final tax and
dividends distributed lo sharsholders will be exampted from tax {"single tier system"). Section 108
tax credits are locked-in 52 at 31 December 2007 and companies with such tax credits are ghvan a
trensitional period of § years until 31 December 2013 to either utilize their lax credits and frank
dividenda under limited circumstances or to disreaand such tax credits and exarcize the option to
pay all dividends under the single tier systam,

The Company has nol elecled for the single tier syslem and as al 31 December 2010, il has
sufficient tax credits and tax axampt profits to frank dividends out of its entire retained sarnings
without incurring any additional tax liability.
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Dividend

In respecl of financial year ended 31 Decemher 2008
Irterim tax esempt dividend of 1% an 75,250,601
ordinary shares (1.0 sen par ordinary share)

ORNAPAPER BERHAD (zsos.w)
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Group and Company

2010 2009
RM'000 RMODO
= 753

The directors do not proposs any final dividend o be paid in respect of the current financial year.

Related party disclosures

{a) Sale and purchase of goods and sarvices

In addition to the relatad party information disciosed slsewhare in the financlal statements, the
following significant transactions between the Group and related parties ook place at terms
agread batwean the parties during the financial year:

Group
31.12.2009

31.12.2010
RM'00O0
With subsidiaries
Menagemsan! fee charged lo:
- Ornapaper Industry (M)
Sdn. Bhd. -
- Ormapaper Indusiry [Perak)
Sdn. Bhd =
- Ornapaper Industry (BP)
Sdn. Bhd. -
Met dividend received from;
- Ormapaper [ndustry (M)
Sdn. Bhd. -
- Ormapaper Industry [Perak)
Sdn. Bhd -
Commission paid to:
- Ornapaper Industry (BF)
Sdn. Bhd. s

With other related parties

Sales lo:

- Perfect Food Manufacturing
(M) Sdn. Bhd.

- Greatbrand Food Industries
Sdn. Bhd.

2,400

201

Company
31.12.2010 31.12.2009

RMOO00 RM'000 RM'OO0

= 146 140

50 50

513

200

1.649% 4 r

Jab - -

Other related parlies are companies in which a director of the Company, Sai Chin Hock, has

substantial financial imterest.
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30. Related party disclosures (continued}

(bl

Compeansation of key managemeant parsonnal

3. Commitments

(al

(b)

Group Company
31.12.2070 31.42.2009 31.12.2010 I12.2008
RM 00D RM'000 RMO00 RM'DCO
Salaries and wages 170 102 - -
Dafined contribution plans 20 12 -
190 114 -
Capital commitments
Group
31.12.2010  31,12.2008
RM'DOD RM'000
Capital expenditure approved and contracted for:
- Property, plant and equipment T, 712 -

Finance lease commitmants

The Company has finance ieasas for cerain ltems of motor vehicles, office equipment and
plant and machinery (Mote 13). These leases do not have ferms of renewal, but have
purchase options at nominal values at the and of tha laase tarm

Future minimurm lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the

net minimum lease payments are as follows:

Minimum lease payments :

Mol fater than one year

Laler than one year and not laler than 2 vears
Later than 2 years and nat later than & years

Less Amounts represenling fulure inance chargas

a8  Annual Report 2010

Group
31.12.2010  31.12.2009
RM'00D RM'000
2,200 2,850
2,238 1,566
1,588 2,549
§.027 7065
(560) (724)
5,467 8,341
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(For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2010)

31. Commitments (continued)

{b} Finance leags commitments [continued)

Group
31122010 31.12.2009
RAM00D RM'000

Present value of finance lease payables :

MNat (atar than one year 1,810 2615
Later than one year and not laler than 2 years 1,885 1,360
Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years 1.872 2,386

5,467 f,341

Lass Amount due within 12 months (Note 23) {1,210} (2,615}
Amount dus after 12 manths (Mote 23) 3,907 3,726

32. Operating lease arrangements

The Graup has entered inta non-cancellable operating lease agreaments for the use of land and
buildings. The leases have an average life of belween 2 to 48 vears with renewal options in the
contracts. Such contracts inelude fixed monthly remtals. The future aggregate minimum lease
payments under such lgases as at the balance sheet date but not included as liabilities are as

follows:
Group
31122010  31.12.2009
RM'0O00 RM'DOD
Mot [ater than ane yvear 73 a4
Later than one year but nat Iater than 2 years 28 38
191 132
33. Contingent liabilities
Company

31.12.2010  31,12.2009
RM"0OD RM'DCD

Unsecured corporate guarantees given to bank for
credit faciliies granted to subsidianes - 92,676
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34. Fair value of financial instruments

a) Fair value of financial instruments by classas thal ara not carriad at fair value and
whose carrying amounts are not raasonabla approximation of fair valus

31122010 31.12.2009
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
RM'000 BM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Group
Investmeni secunties
- Ducted equity instruments - - 18.400 9,160
- Ungquotad eguity instruments 235,000 ‘ 235,000 3

*  Fair valus information for these investments has not bean disclosad as they represent
ordinary shares that are nol quoted an any active market.

b) Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts
are reasanable approximation of fair value

The following are classes of financial inslrumenis that are nat carried al fair value and whose
carrying amaunts are reasenabla approsxdmation of fair value:

Mote
Trade and other receivables 19
Bormowings 22
Trade and other payables 24

The carrying amounts of the trade and cther recelvables and payabies are reasonable
approximation of their fair valuas due to their relatively shorl maturity periods.

The carrying amounts of borrowings are reasonable approximation of their fair velues as the
Inlerast charge an Ihese borrowings are pegged to, or close to, market interest rates near or
al reparting date.

35. Financlal risk management objectives and policies
The Group is exposed to financial isks arising from thelr oparations and the use of financial
instruments. The key financial risks include cradil risk, lNguidity risk, interest rate risk and foraign

currency risk

The Board of Directors raviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management of these
risks,
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(For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2010)
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35, Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

ILis, and has been throughoul the current and previous linancial years, the Group's palicy thal ne
derivativas shall be undertaken except for the use as hedging instruments where appropriate and
cost-efficient. The Group does not apply hedge accounting and there are no outstanding hedging
instruments at reporting date.

The following sections pravide details regarding the Group's expasure to the above-mentionad
financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the managemen| of these risks,

[a) Creditrisk

Credit risk Is the risk of loss thal may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a
courttarparly default on its obligations. The Group's expasure to cradit risk arises primarily
from trade and other receivablas. For other financial assets (including cash and bank
balances), the Graup minimise cradit risk by dealing exclusivaly with high cradit rating
counterpartias.

The Gmup's objective is o ssek continual revenua growlh white minimising ossas Incurred
due to increasad credit isk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised and craditwathy
third parties. ILis tha Group's policy that all custemers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
engoing basis with the resull lhat the Group's exposure 10 bad debts is nol significant. The
ralevant aperating unit, the Group does nol offar cradit lerms without the approval of the
directors.

Exposura Lo aredil risk

At the reporting data, the Group's and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit sk |s
representad by the carrylng amount af each class of financial assets recognized in the
stataments of financial position, with positive fair values and & nominal amount of

RME1 162,000 relating to a corporate guarantes provided by the Company to a bank an
subsidiaries bank loans.

Information regarding credil risk management for trade and olher receivables is disclosed in
Mole 19(a).

redit sk concentratia iiL=3

At the reporting date, approximately 24% (2008 :23%) of the sroup’s grass trade receivables
wera due from 2 (2009 2) customers totalling RM12 484 271 (2008 RM14,004,708),

Financial azasts that ars naither past dua nor impairad

Information regarding trade and cther receivables Lhat are neither past due nar impaired |s
disclosed In Note 18(a).
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35, Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(a}

(k)

Credit risk (continued)

Financial tg (hat ara eith ast d i impair

Information regarding financial assets that are either past cue or impared is disclosed in
Note 15(a).

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk thal the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations
due to shorage of funds. The Group's exposure lo liguidity risk arises primarily from
mismatches of the maturdies of financial assels and liabilities. The Group's objective Is to
maintain a balance belwean conlinuily of funding and Nexibility through the use of stand-by
credit facilities.

The Group manages its debt maturity profile, aperating cash fliows and the availahility of
funding so as to ensure that refinancing, repayment and funding needs are met. As part of ils
avarall llquidity management, the Group malntains sulficlent lavels of cash or cash convartibla
Investments to maet ks working capilal requirements. In addilion, the Group strives to maintain
avallable banking facllities al & reasonable lavel to its overall debt position. As far as possible,
the Group raises committed funding from financial institttions and balances Its portfolle with
some short term funding so as to achieve overall cost effectiveness,

The Group's abjective is 1o maintain a balance between continuity of fupding and flexibility
through the Usa of stand-by cradit facilities and collectinn from custamears.

Analvsis of financial Instruments by remaining contractual maturities

On damand

or within Oneto  Total as at

ane year  five years  31.12.2010
Group RM'G00 RM'000 RM'C00
Trade and other payables 25,866 - 25 8E6
Borrowings 54,127 8,373 60,500
Total undiscoumed financial liabilities ¥9,803 6,273 86,366
Company
Trade and other payables * H - &1
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 31 - 31

As the reporting dale, the counterparty to the financial guarantee does nol haye a right
to demand cash rapayment as the default has not occurrad. Accordingly, financial
guarantees under the scope of FRS 139 are not included in the abova maturity profile

analysis.
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35. Financial risk management objectives and policiss [continued)

(e}

(d)

Interest rate risk

Interesl rate risk is the risk that the fair value ar fulure cash flows of the Group's financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interesl rales.

The Group's interesl rale risk arises primarily from interest-bearing borrowings. The Groug
manages (Is Interest rate exposure by maintaining a prudent mix of fixed and floaling rata
borrowings and actively review ils debt parifolio laking inle account the investment holding
parind and nature of its assats.

These informalion an malurity dates and effective interast rates of financial assels and
liabilifies arz disclosed In their respective notes.

Sansitivity analysis for interest rata risk

Basad on the utilisation of loating rate loans and borrowings throughaout the reparting pericd,

if interas! rates had bean 50 basis pﬂlm lowar {or higher), with all other variables held constant,
the Graup's profit before tax would have been RM315 000 higher {or lower), arfsing mainly as
a resull of lower {or higher) interes! expense thal would have been incurred The assumed
maovemeant In basis points for interest rate sansitivity analysis is based on the cumrantly
observable market environmert,

Fareign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk thal the fair value ar fulure cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuzle because of changes in forsign exchange rates,

The Group Is exposad to lransactional currency risk primarily respective through sales and
purchases thal are denominated In & currency other than the respective funclional currencies
af the Group anfitizs. The cumencies glving riss to this risk are primarily United States Dollars
("USD"} and Singapore Dollars ("3GD") and Eure. Such transactions are kepl to an
accaplable laval,

The net unhadged financial assets and financlal [labilities of the Group companies that are not
denominated in their funclional currencies are as follows:
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35. Financial risk managpement objectives and policies (continued)

{d) Foreign currency risk (continued)

Net financial assets/{liabilities)
held in non-functional currency

sSGD Uso Total
RM'ODD RM'000 RM'0DO
At 31 December 2010
Trade and ather receivables 123 554 BTT
Trade and other pavahlas - {(382] (362)
123 192 315
At 31 December 2009
Trade amd other receivables 131 471 502
Trade and other payables - {82 (82}
131 =89 5210

Sensitivity analysis for forelgn curancy nsk

The following table llustrates the hypothetcal sensilivity of the Group's profit before lax to a
reasonahbly possible change in the USD and SGD axchange retes al the reporting date against
RM, aasuming all other variables remain unchanged.

increasal{decreasa)

2010 2009

RM000 RM'0D0

USD strengthened by 5% (2009; 5%) 12 18
USD weakened by 5% (2009: 5%) (123 (18]
SCD sirengthaned by 5% (2009: 5% (5] 13}
SGD weakenad by 5% (2009 5%) 5 5

36. Capital management

The prmary objective of the Group's capital management is 1o ensure that i maintains a strang
aredit reting and healthy capital ratios in order o support its business and maximise sharsholdar
value.
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Notes To The Financial Statements.
{For The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2010)

36. Capltal management (continued)

The Group manages Its capital structure end makes adjustments 1o it, in hght of changes in
aeconomic conditions, To maintain or adjust the capital slructure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payments to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders or |ssue new shares. No
changes weara mads in the obiectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December
2010 and 31 December 2009,

The Group monitors capital using s gearing ratio, which is nel debi divided by lolal capital plus net
dabt. The Group's palicy is to keep the gearing ratic within acceptable levels. The Group Includes
within nat dabt, borrowings, trade and ather payables, less cash and bank balances. Capltal
includes eguity atirbutable to equity holders of the Group.

Group

31.12.2010  31.12.2009

RM'ODD RM'000

Bormawings 28,940 66,049
Trade and other payables 26,866 21418
Less: - Gash and bank balances (12.545) (13.565)
el dehi 73,261 73,802
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 101.763 89,615
Capital and nat dabd 175024 173517
Gearing ratio 42% 439%

37. Segment informatian

MNo segmantal reporting is prepared as the Group is principally involved in the manufacturing and
disinbudion of corrugated boards and carton boxes which are predominantly caried out in Malaysia.

38. Comparative figures

Certain camparative figures as at 31 December 2009 have been restated as a result of the changs
in accounting policy as disclosec in Note 2.2(d) and to conform with the current year's presentation:

Originally Reclassl|-

reported Adjusted fied Restated
RM'000 RM'000 RM'COD RM'000

Statement of financial position
Property, plant and squipmeant 73,045 10,374 - B2 420
Land use rights 14175 (10.374) 38 3837
Trade and other recaivables 51,161 2.109 B4 270
Other currant assels 3,523 - {3,145) 37a
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38. Comparative figures {continued)

Originally Reclassi-
reporied Adjusted fiad Restated
RM'000 RM 00O RM'00Q RMOOG
Statement of cash flows
Amartisation and depraciation:
- Property, plant and equipment 6,360 132 = 6482
- Land use rights 242 (132} - 111

38, Authorisation of financial stalements for issus

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010 were authorized for issues in

accaordance with a resclution of tha directors an 22 April 2011.

40. Supplementary Information — Breakdown of realised and unreallsed retalned earnings

The breakdown of the retained profils of the Group and of the Company as at 31 Cacember 2010
inta realised and unrealised profils is presentsd in aceordance wilh tha directive issued by Bursa
Malaysia Saecuriles Berhad datad 25 March 2010 and prepared in accordance wilh Guidance on
Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realisad and Unrealised Profils or Losses in the Context’
of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issusd by

the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Group Company
RM'000 RMWM'000
Total retained profitsi({losses) of the Company and its subsidiaries
- Realized 55367 204
- Unrealizad {4.963) -
50,402 284
Less: Consalidation adjustments {35,048) -
Reatained profits as per financial statemenis 15,358 204
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As AL T3 May 2011

Class of Shares  : RM1.00 Ordinary Share
Voting Rights : 1 Vote per Ordinary Share

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDERS

Analysis Of Shareholdings

Range No. of

Sharcholders b Mo. of Shares i
1028 10 0.54 &d5 .00
100 b 1,000 354 19,12 324,705 0.44
1,001 11 10,000 1,001 5408 5,084,914 .76
10,007 1o 100,000 41 2275 13,885,004 18.45
100,001 to 3,762,528 a2 335 21,667,555 28.80
3,782 530 and abowe ! 0,16 2L 2TT IR 4555

1 B51 100.00 TR 250,601 100.00
SUESTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Diract Indirgct
Name Mo. of Ehares % Ma. af Share %
[ntisar Delima Sdn Bhd 18,604 888 24.76 - -
Lembaga Tabung Haji 11 460 645 15.24 - -
Lim Tau Lin 4174045 555 - -
Ang Kwas Teng 10,000 - ¥ 18,634,588 2478
Eaa Wan Sang - - . 18,634 8BE 2478
Sal Chin Hock 848 400 1.12 4t 42,306,708 20.64
3. DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS
|Based on the Register of Oirectora’ Shareholdings)

Nams Ma. of Shares Yo Mo. of Shares %
Acillah bintl Armad Mordin 34,0040 Q.05 - -
Ang Kwea Tang 10,000 0.01 18,054,888 1 2476
Azhar bin Mayan 25,000 2.03 - -
Sal Chin Heok 248 400 1.12 22305708 # 2064
See \Wan Seng - - 18,654,885 2476
Siow Kee Yean 230,500 Q.3 - -
Motes =

* Deemed inlerastad by virtue of 1helr shereholdings in Inlisan Dalima Sun Bhd

# Daemed fibarasiad Dy vintue of him bedng the fathar o Mr Sai Seax Chyuan, M Sai Tzy Homag, &

substantial shereholder of Filihan Sistematik Sdn Bhd and by virtue of his substantial sharsheldings in

Intisan Delima Sdn Bhd
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Analysis Of Shareholdings

As AL 13 May 2011

THIRTY (30) LARGEST SECURITIES ACCOUNT HOLDERS

Mame of Shareholders No. of Shares Hold
1. INTISAR| DELIMA SON BHD 16,634,865
2. LEMBAGATABUNG HAJI 19 468.845
3 LIMTAULIH 4,174,045
4. Bhl SEAK CHYUAN 2 568 588
5 LAUCHEEWEN 1,807 500
E.  KLUA&H SAY CHONG 1,335,000
7. GRANDEUR LAND EDN BHD 1,000,600
B, YANG, WEI-CHEN 90,489
9. SUFPERIOR RAINBOW SDN BHD 831 600
10, BAl CHIN HOCK 846,400
11, JFAPEX NOMINEES [TEMPATAM) SDN BHD FLEDGED

SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR HON MENG HENG [MARGIN) 710,100
12, B SEAK CHYUAN 643000
13; SIANG TECK SIONG &G54, 800
td, MALACCA EQUITY NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SON BHD PLEDGED

SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR SWE AMIN & SWI AH MIN 460, 500
18. PILIHAN SISTEMATIK SON BHD 456 324
16, LOYOON NIEN 424,100
17. GQMH CHOGN HONG 424,000
18. RHBE NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDHN BHD FLEDGED

SECURITIESACCOUNT FOR FOOQ KAl SENG 219800
19. LEE WEIGIA 200,000
20, LIMHUEY TIEN 300,000
21. DNGEBOH LEE Zo4.000
22, GOHYU TIAN 289,100
23, KHOOC KM KA 252,500
24, KOO BOON LONG 232,800
25. THIN HUIFONG 227000
2B, SIOW KEE YEN 225800
27, THEM FOOK KHIAN 224,000
20, D0 LEMNG HWA, 218,000
9. CHIN LiAN FOOMN 211,000
0. HUAMG, CHIEN-YI 200,000

Total 50,808.477

Yo

2476
165.24
5.55
a.41
2.40
178
133
132
1.24
1.12

0.54
0.85
0.65

0.61
061
[1.56
0.56

043
(1441
0.40
0.39
0.28
0.34
0:31
0.30
0.30
050
0.29
0.28
0.27

67.52
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Form Of Proxy

CO8 ACCOLNT NOY

NUMEER OT SHARES FIELD

1 We NRIC o Campany b,
of [full address)

bring o Megibeer Megibers of ORNAPAFER BERHAD, ereby appoint

MNRIC N of

or faiting *him/her, MNRTC Mo, waf

or failing *him fher, the CHATRMAN OF THE MEFTING 32 *myfanr proxy feovobe for “me/os and o Sy /onre
behall zt the Ninth Arnual General Meeting of the Company to be held st the Meeiing Koom T of Hnliday Inn
Madaka, Jalin Sved Abdul Arke, FRI0D Melaka on Wednesday, 28 Tune 2011 af 10030 am. and af any adjournment

therent:

[ Mo, | Hesoluton |

1, Tor recetve the Audited Firanca) Stabments for the financidl vear ended 31 Decembes 2000 logether wilk
the Reporta of the Dinechors and thie Auditors fhirean,

| Mo Basolutliogs For | Aptinst
[ Toy appoove the payment of Thrertory” Fees for the tmanmal vear ended 31 December
ik
|
a Tiw reeeloct Me See W Seng whie retires purswsanst o Adicle 2 of the Company's

Articles ol Aggoeration

3 To re-alect Puan Adillah bingt Ahmad foordin who retives parsuant 10 Articie 92 of
ihe Compsry's Articles of Asseciation.
[5 Tonre-alect Mr. Surw Fee Yo whin retires purauant fir Arficle 92 of the Company’s
. | Articles of Assneiatinn. e =
-3 To re-appoint Lrnst & Young as Auditors of the Campany unbl the conclustiom of the
next Admnal General Mecting wd 0 aothadse e DeEcolors to fix thedr
FALTA TRV IS L TE AR
4. Specinl Huziness

trdinare Hesolution
Froposed  Renewal of Sharcholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Melated . 'asty
Transactions ol a Keverowe oF Tradine Malure

* Sirike aul alicheses aul apalicands,

Plesse nulicate with an *X7 i the spece provided alove how vou wish your vobes o be costerl 15 1w specifie
direction as ta veling is given, the procy will vote or abstaim from voting at hisfher disonetion,

A witness mivSour hand(s) this day of 2011

Signatuee ol Member/ Common Hoal
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Nibes:
Vb pespend ol dlepmatbad socu iy, only e imbess whiose gams appear 100 e Reeord of Prepestiers on 32 fune
2031 {"General Meetng Recopd of Depositors”) shall be aligible tooattend the Meebing,

2 A ember entiled o athend and viite af Hhie Meeting is entitled to appoint more than ben (%) prokies o alend
and vote in his stead. A prosy may e need not be a member of the Company and 2 member may appoint any
person o be fus prosy withoot odlulion ood the provision of Scclon 1490003, (L () and (d) of B
_omparies AZL 1965 shall pot apply to the Company.

3 Whore s miembe dpponits two (2] or anone prosdes, the appoinfment shll be iealid unles be or she specifies
Lhe proporten of his or her holdings o be representad by eacly proxy.

4. The frmtroamment appuinkng prouy shall bein writtmg under the band of th EP[.II.'.IirIﬁ!I'I' o af his attormey dul:,.-
anthorsod Jowrilling or i theagrpoinge 15 a corposalion, either wnder 1ts seal or wnder the hand ol an olliee o
artormey dily avthorlsed.

5. Thwe itestruttiond appointing o prowy must by deposited at the Reglsierad Office of b Compeny at Lot L4, 6
Floor, bMenara Pestam, Jalan DBT 2 Tamean Bate Berendapn Pubra, Batu Derendam, 75350 Melaka not less than
48 hanrs hatore the Ame for holding the Meeling or st any adjommment fheneol

fold here
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